¥

HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD

Public Health

BOARD OF HEALTH
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
MEETING

Wednesday, May 22, 2024
1:30 to 3:00 p.m.

Virtual via ZOOM

Please note there will be a
Closed Session
at the beginning of the meeting

To ensure a quorum we ask that you please
RSVP (Regrets Only) to
clovell@hpeph.ca or 613-966-5500, Ext 231 and
contact your alternate to attend.

—_—

Hastings Prince Edward Public Health
Main Office - 179 North Park Street, Belleville, ON K8P 4P1



mailto:clovell@hpeph.ca

Hastings Prince Edward Public Health

2019 - 20235

Strategic Plan

Healthy Communities, Together with our communities,
Healthy People. we help people become as
healthy as they can be.

ollaboration dvocacy espect Excellence

2—-2
¢ B O H o
Community Staff Population Health  Program Health
Engagement Engagement Assessment and Standards Promotion
and Culture Surveillance

®
C) o) HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD -
i‘ ', P ° hpePublicHealth.ca / 613 - 966 - 5500
Y u b I I c H ea It h BELLEVILLE / NORTH HASTINGS / PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY / QUINTE WEST




Y HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD

Public Health

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
AGENDA

Wednesday, May 22, 2024
1:30 pm — 3:00 pm
Virtual

If you are unable to attend, and have not already done so, please arrange for your
alternate to attend and advise Catherine Lovell at clovell@hpeph.ca Thank you.

10.

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND THE GENERAL NATURE
THEREOF

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

CLOSED SESSION

THAT the Board of Health convene in closed session for the purpose of a
discussion of personnel issues in accordance with Section 239 (2) (f) advice
that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary
for the purpose.

MOTIONS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
7.1 Meeting Minutes of October 25, 2023 Schedule 7.1

NEW BUSINESS
8.1 Board of Health Governance Package Schedule 8.1

DATE OF NEXT MEETING — October 23, 2024

ADJOURNMENT

Page1lof1


mailto:clovell@hpeph.ca

Y HASTING§ PRINCE EDWARD

'Public Health

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES

Wednesday, October 25, 2023
1:30 pm = 3:00 pm
Virtual via ZOOM

Present:
Mr. Sean Kelly, Councillor, City of Belleville
Mr. Phil St. Jean, Councillor, Prince Edward County
Mr. David McCue, Councillor, City of Quinte West (had some technological issues)
Ms. Jan O’Neill, Mayor, Municipality of Marmora and Lake, County of Hastings

Absent:
Dr. Jeffrey Allin, Provincial Representative
Mr. Bill Roberts, Councillor, Prince Edward County

Also Present:
Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Medical Officer of Health and CEO
Ms. David Johnston, Director of Corporate Services
Ms. Catherine Lovell, Executive Assistant

1. CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 1:32 p.m. by Chair Kelly.
2. ROLL CALL

3. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND THE GENERAL NATURE
THEREOF - None

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

THAT the agenda of the October 25, 2023 Governance Committee be approved as

circulated.

MOTION:

Moved by: Jan
Seconded by: Phil
CARRIED

5. CLOSED SESSION

THAT the Board of Health convene in closed session for the purpose of a
discussion of personnel issues in accordance with Section 239 (2) (d)
labour relations or employee negotiations.



Governance Committee Page 2 of 3 October 25, 2023
Minutes of Meeting

MOTION:
Moved by: Jan
Seconded by: Phil
CARRIED

6. MOTIONS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION

THAT the Board endorse the actions approved in the Closed Session and direct
staff to take appropriate action.

MOTION:
Moved by: Phil
Seconded by: Jan
CARRIED

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING - May 24, 2023

THAT the minutes of the May 24, 2023 Governance Committee meeting be approved
as circulated.

MOTION:
Moved by: Jan
Seconded by: Phil
CARRIED

8. NEW BUSINESS
8.1 Deferral of Strategic Planning for 2024

THAT the Governance Committee make recommendation to the Board of Health
for approval of deferring a formal strategic planning process for a minimum of one
year.

MOTION:

Moved by: David
Seconded by: Jan
CARRIED

+ Dr. Toumishey discussed the briefing note, to which all were in agreement to

deferring this activity and recommending this to the Board. There were no
other questions or comments.

8.2 Risk Management Progress Report

THAT the Governance Committee receive the report as circulated and recommend
taking it to the Board of Health for approval.

Approved at Governance Meeting




Governance Committee Page 3 of 3
Minutes of Meeting

October 25, 2023

9.

10.

MOTION:

Moved by: Jan
Seconded by: David
CARRIED

+ David Johnston reviewed the information in the briefing note.

¢+ There were no questions or comments.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING - Wednesday, May 22, 2024 (Tentative)

ADJOURNMENT
MOTION:

Moved by: Phil
Seconded by: Jan
CARRIED

THAT the Governance Committee meeting adjourn at 1:59 p.m.

Sean Kelly, Governance Committee Chair

Approved at Governance Meeting




Y
HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD

Public Health

Board of Health Governance Briefing Note

To:

Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health — Governance Committee

Prepared by:

David Johnston, Director of Corporate Services

Approved by:

Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Medical Officer of Health and CEO

Date:

Wednesday, May 22, 2024

Subject:

Updated Board Governance Package

Nature of Board
Engagement

[ ] For Information

[] Strategic Discussion

X Board approval and motion required

X] Compliance with Accountability Framework
[] Compliance with Program Standards

Action Required:

Governance Committee to review the updated Governance Package including the
by-laws and policies contained therein and recommend approval to the Board of
Health at its next meeting.

Background:

In accordance with the Ontario Public Health Standards: Good
Governance and Management Practices Domain, the Board of Health
shall ensure that by- laws, policies and procedures are reviewed and
revised as necessary, and at least every two years.

The requirements for by-laws in public health is outlined in the Health
Protection and Promotion Act (HPPA) RSO 1990, c.H.7 Section 56 (1)
which specifies:

A board of health (Board) shall pass by-laws respecting,

(a) Management of its property;

(b) Banking and finance;

(c) Calling of and proceedings at meetings; and
(d) Appointment of an auditor.

The Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS) provide further direction
regarding policy development for a public health agency.

By-Laws

Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH) has four (4) by-laws. A
borrowing by-law is approved every year and is required by Canadian Imperial
Bank of Commerce (CIBC). This by-law was approved at the March 6, 2024
meeting of the Board.

The remaining three (3) by-laws were last reviewed in 2022. Minor editing and
format changes have been incorporated as required and the following revisions
have been made for review. Revisions include:

¢ Banking and Financial Activities: By-law 2024-02
0 Removed the requirement of a resolution to appoint an auditor as
we automatically adopt the audit firm used by the municipality that
contributes the largest share of expenses.




e Property Management: By-law 2024-03
o Improved wording for enhanced clarification

Policies

The Board of Health governance package consists of seventeen (17) policies.
Minor editing has been included in this set of revisions. There were no
substantive changes to any of the policies.

One new policy was introduced:

e Deputation Requests to the Board of Health (this was approved at the
June 7, 2023 Board of Health meeting).

Terms of Reference
There were no changes made to the Terms of Reference.

For ease of reading, changes have been highlighted in yellow.




an

HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD

Public Health

A

%CKAGE

GOVERNA&%
Ng PRINCE EDWARD

HA
ARD OF HEALTH

To be Approved: Wednesday, May 22, 2024 (Governance Committee)
Wednesday, June 6, 2024 (Board of Health)

TN
: HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD y

= hpePublicHealth.ca [ 613 - 966 - 5500

ﬁ ” Pu bI ic H Ea Ith BELLEVILLE / NORTH HASTINGS [ PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY [ QUINTE WEST




Hastings Prince Edward Public Health

2019 - 2023

Strategic Plan

Our Vision Our Mission
Healthy Communities, Together with our communities,
Healthy People. we help people become as
healthy as they can be.
---------------------------- @Uw‘%ﬁfaﬁﬁ&‘g@g BB R N NSNS E S EE NSNS
Show We CARE
R <0; [ 2 et
& B W @

Collaboration Advocacy Respect Excellence

.
........................................................................................

Our Strategic Priorities

B 22 B -a O
a %] En{\a"%} ny éﬂ% p |]‘ ! ﬂ":‘)‘&

-&*.!:m 22 _—w
Community Staff Population Health  Program Health
Engagement Engagement  Assessment and Standards Promotion
and Culture Surveillance

)
® o) HASTINGS PRINCE EDWARD .

. hpePublicHealth.ca / 613 - 966 - 5500
hy PUbllc Health BELLEVILLE { NORTH HASTINGS / PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY / QUINTE WEST




Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION . .. 4
OV BIVIBW ..o 4
) {0 ot AU T TP UPPPPTRRPPPPPIN 4
MEELING STIUCTUI .ttt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e eeeeaba e e e e eeeeeeeennnnns 5
Y (= 1= 0 Lo - Vo S 5
Expectations of Board MemDErsS ........ooo i eeeanees 5
IMPOTTANT LINKS ..ot e e e e e et a e e e e e e eees 5
Challenges and OpPPOrtUNITIES ....ccccciiieieeiicie e e e e e e es 6

B Y - A N S ittt —————tt ettt t—a— ittt ettt ettt tatteettetttattaeannnernnrnes 7

By-Law No. 2024-01 Annual By-Law to authorize the borrowing of up to $1,000,000 7
By-Law No. 2024-02 A by-law to govern the banking and financial activities of the

Board of Health, and the appointment of auditor ...............uuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 8
L. DEIINITIONS .o 8
2. Delegation Of AUTNOKILY ......cooveiiiiiiie e e e e e e 8
3. BOrrowing AULNOTILY ......oeeieiieee e 9
4.  Agreement with Chartered Bank or Trust COmMpany.......cccceeeeeevvvevvvveiiineeeennnnn. 9
T o | ][ T AU 1 o] R 9
6.  Appointment Of an AUGITON........ooeiiiii e 10
7. Duties of an AUITOr.......coooiiiiiii 10
8.  RIGhtS Of @N AUAITON......uii e 10
9.  Conflict with other StatUte ...........uuiiiii e 11
10, SEVEIADIITY . ...uuuiie e e e eeaanaa 11
11. Previous By-laws ReSCINEd.............ouuiiiiiiiieiieiie e 11
12, By-lIawW iNtO €ffECT.....cooieeeiiiiie s 11

By-Law No. 2024-03 A by-law to govern the management and financing of the Board

of Health’s physical Properties. .......ccoovvviiiiiiiie e 12
N B 1Y ] 11 (o] 1P UUPPPPPUPPRRRN 12
2. Board to HOIA TItle ..oooiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeee ettt 12
T ¥ L[ o ) - Vo (o (PP PPPPPPPPPPPPP 12
4,  Property COMMIIIEE .....ccooiiiiiiiiiiee e e e e e e e e e 13
5. Capital FUNAING Plan.......ccooiiiiciie e 13
6. Property Management Responsibility..............cceoiiieeiiiiiieiiiiiieee e 13
7.  Capital Development Project Responsibility ..o, 14
8.  Statutory REQUIFEMENTS .....ccoiieiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e e e 14
9.  Conflict with Other StatUtes...........ccuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 14



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

10, SEVEIADIITY . ...uuuiiei e a e e eeaaaaas 14
11. Previous By-laws ReSCINEd.............ouviiiiiiiiiiieecee e 14
12, By-law intO €ffECT.....ccoveeiiieie e 14
By-Law 2024-04 A by-law to provide rules governing the proceedings of the Hastings
& Prince Edward Counties Health Unit Board of Health ......................, 15
Table Of CONENES ... .o e e e e e e e e 15
N B 1Y ] 11 (o] 1P UURPPPPPPPRRRN 16
P € 1= o = - | PSP PP PPPPPPPPPPPPP 16
3. Meetings Of the BOArd .........coooeiiiiiiiii e 16
S O 1111 £ PSSP 18
5. Order Of BUSINESS ......ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeessssseessssesseeeenes 19
6. Opening Procedure and QUOIUM .........cooiiiiiuiiuiiiaeeeeeeeeeeiiiia e e e eeeeenene s 20
7.  Addressing the Board and Conduct of VISItOrS..........cccoeuviiiiiinneeieieceiiiinn 20
8.  CoNAUCT Of MEMDEIS .....oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee ettt eeeees 20
9.  Disclosure of Pecuniary INtereSt.........oouuviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 21
10. Questions of Privilege and Points of Order ............cccooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e, 22
11. RUIES OF DEDALE ... 22
D2 Lo 1| Vo U UUUPPPPPPPRTRN 24
13, COMMUNICALIONS ....coiiiiiiiiiiiee e ettt e e e ettt s e e e e e e e eeeeesna e e e e e e eeeeesnnnns 24
14, ClOSEA SESSION ... 24
10, BY AW oo 26
G T N[ o = T UUPPPPPPPPRRRN 26
17. Duties Of the SECIEIANY.......coii i i e e e e e eaaaaees 27
18. Appointment, Organization and Conduct of Committees ..............ccceeeevvennnnn. 28
19.  COrPOrate SEaAI......ccciiiiiiiiiiiie e eeeaaaaas 28
20. Execution Of DOCUMENLS .......ccuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 28

P N 1 1 (=T 4 0] (=] = Ui [o ] o PR 28
22, BY-LaWS RESCINAEA ......coo i 28
BOARD POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ........cooutiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeieieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 29
Accountability and TranSPAIrENCY ..........cooiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiae et e e e e e 29
Appointment of EXternal AQVISOIS. ....... oo 31
Board Representation at External FUNCLIONS ............ccovvvviiiiiiii e e e 32
Board of Health Confidentiality ... 33
Board of Health Statement of Confidentiality ................uoiiiiiiiiiii e, 34
Board of Health Self-Evaluation PrOCESS............uuuuuriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeieeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 35




BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

CONTICE OF INTEIEST..... et e e e e e e e e as 36
Delegation of Medical Officer of Health DUtieS ..............covviiiiiiiiiiiice e, 37
Medical Officer of Health: Remuneration...............cccooivviiiiiiiiiii e 38
Medical Officer of Health: Recruitment and Contractual Arrangements..................... 39
Orientation and Education of the Board of Health ...............ccccovviiiiiii e 40
Performance Review of the Medical Officer of Health ................cccoiiiiiii e, 42
Remuneration & Reimbursement of Expenses for the Board of Health..................... 43
Y= L =0 [0 = o o 45
Land ACKNOWIEAQEMENT .........ooiiiiiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaeeennnnns 46
Calculation of MUNICIPAI LEVY .....oi it 47
0 LYo o> T3 PSP 48
Deputation Requests to the Board of Health ..............cccccccoiiiiii e, 50
TERMS OF REFERENCE - GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE ......covvviiiiiiieeciee 52
TERMS OF REFERENCE - FINANCE COMMITTEE .....coooiiiiiiii 54

3|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

INTRODUCTION

Overview

The Board of Health (Board) is an autonomous body responsible for the governance
and oversight of Hastings and Prince Edward Counties Health Unit in accordance with
Section VI — Health Units and Boards of Health of the Health Protection and Promotion
Act (HPPA).

The Board oversees the implementation, management and advocacy for the health
programs and services described in the HPPA and associated regulations. Specific
programs and services can be found on our website at hpePublicHealth.ca.

HPEPH has strong community and inter-agency partnerships and, with a core staff of
approximately 130 full time equivalents, prides itself on being an innovative, responsive
public-health-unit local public health agency that can respond quickly to community
needs. HPEPH has a main office in Belleville and service hubs in Trenton, Picton and
Bancroft. The Medical Officer of Health and Chief Executive Officer is the Executive
Officer to the Board of Health (Board) and is responsible to the Board for the
management of the organization’s public health programs and services as required by
law.

Funding for programs at HPEPH are financed through the Ministry of Health, Ministry of
Children, Community and Social Services, Health Canada, the Public Health Agency of
Canada and the municipal sector. Municipal funding is based on a cost-sharing
arrangement with the Ministry of Health.

Program requirements for HPEPH are provided through a comprehensive set of both
program and organizational requirements that specify the expectations of a public
health unit to provide health programs and services.

Although the legal name of the health unit is The Board of Health of the Hastings and
Prince Edward Counties Health Unit, effective 2015, the Health Unit operates as
Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH).

Structure

The Board at HPEPH consists of both municipal members and appointed members.
Regulation 559 of the HPPA stipulates that HPEPH shall have eight municipal
members, two each from the City of Belleville, City of Quinte West, County of Hastings
and the County of Prince Edward. In accordance with the HPPA, the Lieutenant
Governor in Council may appoint one or more persons to a Board of Health. Typically,
HPEPH has had two provincial appointees. The maximum number must be less than
the number of municipal members of the Board.

Municipal Board members are appointed for the duration of their term in public office or
until the respective Council decides to change its representation. Provincial Appointees
are appointed by the Ontario Public Appointments Secretariat with varying terms of one,
two or three years.

4|Page


http://www.hpepublichealth.ca/
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/900559

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Meeting Structure

During the first meeting of each year, the Board will:
» Elect a Chair and Vice-Chair

» Appoint Board members to standing committees. Current committees include
the Finance and Governance Committees. An ad-hoc Property or Hiring
Committee may also be appointed as required.

» A meeting schedule is distributed at the beginning of each year. The Board
typically meets on the first Wednesday of the month from February to December
and meetings are held in person whenever possible. No meetings are held over
the summer unless required.

» The Finance Committee meets quarterly or as required on the fourth/third
Wednesday of the month.

» The Governance Committee meets twice a year or as required on the fourth/
third Wednesday of the month.

» The Board of Health is subject to the Municipal Act. Meetings follow the same
procedures as municipalities.

Strategic Plan

Due to the provincial initiative, Strengthening Public Health and the endorsement by the
Board of Health on October 4, 2023 to explore voluntary merger opportunities in
accordance with Ministry of Health parameters, it was recommended that a formal
strategic planning process for Hastings Prince Edward Public Health be deferred for a
minimum of one year.

Expectations of Board Members

The governance package consists of by-laws, board policies and procedures and
committee terms of reference which provides a comprehensive overview of how the
Board operates. The Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) provides a
superb orientation and governance toolkit which all Board members are encouraged to
review. The materials prepared by alPHa provide detailed information on the history
and programs of public health, roles and responsibilities of the Board and the Medical
Officer of Health, common abbreviations, Acts pertaining to public health and other
general governance information.

Important links

Health Protection and Promotion Act, R.S.0. 1990, c. H.7

Municipal Act, 2001

Municipal Affairs Act, R.S.0. 1990, c. M.46, Part ll, General sections 11 and 12
Association of Local Public Health Agencies

5|Page


https://www.alphaweb.org/
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/01m25
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m46#top
https://www.alphaweb.org/page/BOH_Shared_Resources

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

¢+ Orientation Manual for Boards of Health
+ Governance Toolkit
Ontario Public Health Standards (June, 2021)
Hastings Prince Edward Public Health Website

Challenges and Opportunities

» Strengthening Public Health — Voluntary Merger
» Ontario Public Health Standards review

» Community needs and prioritization of public health services

6|Page


https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/boh_orientation_manual.pdf
https://cdn.ymaws.com/www.alphaweb.org/resource/resmgr/boh_file/alpha_boh_governance_toolkit.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://hpepublichealth.ca/board-of-health/

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

BY-LAWS

By-Law No. 2024-01
Annual By-Law to authorize the borrowing of up to $1,000,000

WHEREAS the Board of Health for the Hastings and Prince Edward Counties Health Unit
(hereinafter called the “Board”) deems it necessary to borrow the sum of up to
$1,000,000 to meet expenditures of the Board for the year until the municipal levies and
government grants are received:

THEREFORE, the Board hereby enacts as follows:

1. The Chair of the Board and the Chair of the Finance Committee are hereby authorized
on behalf of the Board to borrow from time to time by way of promissory note from the
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce, a sum or sums not exceeding $1,000,000 to
meet the current expenditures of the Board for the year until the municipal levies and
government grants are received, and to give on behalf of the Board, to the bank, a
promissory note or notes and signed by the Chair of the Board and the Chair of the
Finance Committee for the monies so borrowed, with interest at such rate as may be
agreed upon from time to time with the Bank.

2. The interest costs for all sums borrowed pursuant to the authority of the by-law shall be
charged as an expenditure against the revenues of the Board for the current year.

3. The Chair of the Finance Committee is hereby authorized and directed to apply in
payment of all sums borrowed as aforesaid, together with the interest thereon, all of the
monies hereafter collected are received either on account or realized in respect of
levies and grants for the current year and preceding year or from any other source
which may lawfully be applied for such purpose.

This by-law shall come into force and take effect immediately upon the approval thereof.

2. O'Id s 40 ps a7 B4
Jan O’Neill, Chair, Board of Health Daté .
- L ~ "r
;qu.qu‘r .km'g_d,{.{,hﬂ_,[&{f" )\lf.f,!‘b’“f et ?f.:"; “
Dr Ethan Toumishey, Date '

Medical Officer of Health &EZED

By-law No. 2024-01 Page 1 of 1
Approved: March 6, 2024

7|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

By-Law No. 2024-02
A by-law to govern the banking and financial activities of the Board of Health, and
the appointment of auditor

WHEREAS the Health Protection and Promotion Act (HPPA) RSO 1990, c. H.7, as amended,
Section 56 (1b & d) and the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS): Requirements for
Programs, Services, and Accountability 2021, Public Health Accountability Framework Fiduciary
Requirements Domain (Requirement #10) require that a Board of Health shall pass by-laws
respecting banking and finance and the appointment of an auditor;

AND WHEREAS the HPPA RSO 1990, c. H.7, as amended, Section 59 (1a & b) and the OPHS:
Requirements for Programs, Services, and Accountability 2021: Public Health Accountability
Framework Fiduciary Requirements Domain (Requirement #9) require that a Board of Health
shall keep:

a) books, records and accounts of its financial affairs, and

b) the invoices, receipts and other documents in its possession that relate to the financial
affairs of the Board.

The HPPA RSO 1990, c. H.7, as amended, Section 59 (2), and the OPHS: Requirements for
Programs, Services, and Accountability 2021, Public Health Accountability Framework Planning
Documents / Transparency Framework Public Reporting further state the Board of Health shall
cause to be prepared statements of its financial affairs in each year, including

a) annual statement of income and expenses,
b) annual statement of assets and liabilities, and
¢) annual estimate of expenses for the following year.

NOW THEREFORE the Board of Health for the Hastings & Prince Edward Counties Health Unit
enacts as follows:

1. Definitions

a) “Act” means the Health Protection and Promotion Act, R.S.0. 1990, c. H.7, as amended,;

b) “Board” means the Board of Health for the Hastings & Prince Edward Counties Health
Unit, operating as Hastings Prince Edward Public Health;

c) “The Agency” means Hastings Prince Edward Public Health.

2. Delegation of Authority
2.1 All matters related to the financial affairs of the Board shall be carried out by the
Medical Officer of Health or as designated to the Director of Corporate Services.

2.2 Furthermore, the Board authorizes the Director of Corporate Services or their
designate, on behalf of the Board to:

a) Ensure the preparation of budgets for submission to the Board and administer
approved budgets under the jurisdiction of the Board,

8|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

b) Ensure the regular reporting of financial and operating statements is completed for
the Board in accordance with established Ministry policies and indicating the
financial position of the Board with respect to the current operations,

c) Arrange for an annual audit of all accounting books and records in accordance with
terms of funding requirements and generally accepted accounting principles,

d) Ensure statements of its financial affairs are prepared in each year including, but
not limited to, the following:
i. an annual statement of income and expenses,
ii. an annual statement of assets and liability, and
iii. an annual estimate of expenses for the next year,

e) Act as custodian of the books of account and accounting records of the Board, as
required, to be kept according to the laws of the Province,

f) Ensure agreements are in place for the provision of payroll and banking services
as required,

g) Perform other duties as the Board may direct.

3. Borrowing Authority

The Board, from time to time, may

a) borrow money on the credit of the Board, and

b) charge, mortgage, hypothecate, pledge or otherwise create a security interest in all or
any of the currently owned or subsequently acquired real or personal, movable or
immovable property of the Board, including, without limitation, book debts, rights,
powers, franchises and undertakings, to secure any present or future indebtedness,
liabilities or other obligations of the Board.

4. Agreement with Chartered Bank or Trust Company

The Board, through the Medical Officer of Health and the Director of Corporate Services, will
enter into an agreement with a recognized chartered bank or trust company that will provide
the following services:

a) current or savings account(s) as required,
b) interest bearing operating account,

¢) provision of cancelled cheques on a monthly basis, together with monthly bank
statements showing all debits and credits,

d) electronic statements, access and services as required by the Agency, and
e) provision of advice and other banking services required by the Board.

5. Signing Authority

5.1 The authority to sign cheques, and all related contractual documents and agreements,
will be restricted to these five (5) positions: Chair of the Board, Vice-Chair of the
Board, Chair of the Finance Committee, Medical Officer of Health, and Director of
Corporate Services.

9|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

52

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

The signatures of two authorized persons shall be required on each cheque or
financial obligation.

Cheques and financial obligations under $100,000 shall be signed by any two of the
following: the Medical Officer of Health, Director of Corporate Services, Chair of the
Board, Vice Chair of the Board, or the Chair of the Finance Committee.

Cheques and financial obligations over $100,000 shall be signed by any two of the
following: the Medical Officer of Health, Chair of the Board, Vice Chair of the Board or
the Chair of the Finance Committee.

Notwithstanding the requirements for signatures listed above, cheques or electronic
funds transfers for monthly benefit payments and Ontario Municipal Employees
Retirement System (OMERS) pension premiums shall be signed by any two of the five
authorized signees.

Notwithstanding the requirements for signatures listed above, other contractual
documents and agreements binding the Agency shall be signed by any one (or two) of
the five authorized signees above, in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

Notwithstanding the requirements for signature listed above, signing authority for
employment contracts shall be in accordance with the Agency’s operational policies.

6. Appointment of an Auditor

6.1

6.2

treach-yearbyreseldtion, the Board shall confirm the appointment of an auditor who
shall not be a member of the Board and shall be licensed under the Public Accounting

Act, 2004, S.0. 2004, Chapter 8, as amended. The Agency shall use the same audit
firm as the municipality with the largest share of expenses.

Only the auditor of the municipality that is responsible for the largest share of the
expenses of the Agency in the year is required to audit the local Board in that year.

7. Duties of an Auditor
The Auditor shall:

a)
b)

c)

audit the accounts and transactions of the Board,

perform such duties as prescribed by the Act and the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and
Housing with respect to local boards under the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended, and
the Municipal Affairs Act, R.S.0. 1990, as amended, and

perform such other duties as may be required by the Board.

8. Rights of an Auditor
The Auditor shall:

a)

b)

have a right of access at all reasonable hours to all books, records, documents,
accounts, and vouchers of the Board and is entitled to require from the members of the
Board and from the Officers of the Board such information and explanation as in their
opinion may be necessary to enable them to carry out prescribed duties, and

be entitled to attend any meeting of the Board and to receive all notices relating to any
such meeting, and to be heard at any such meeting that they attend on any part of the
business of the meeting that concerns them as auditor.

10|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/04p08
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/04p08
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/01m25
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m46#BK12

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

9. Conflict with other Statute
Where there is conflict between any part(s) of this by-law and any statute or regulation, the
statute or regulation shall take precedence.

10. Severability
If a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction declares any portion of this by-law to be illegal
or unenforceable, that portion of this by-law will be considered severed from the remainder
of this by-law, which shall continue to be in full force and effect.

11.Previous By-laws Rescinded
All previous by-laws governing the banking and financial authorities and providing for the
duties of the Auditor of the Board of Health are hereby rescinded.

12.By-law into effect

This by-law shall come into force and take effect immediately upon the approval of the Chair
of the Board of Health and the Medical Officer of Health.

Jan O’Neill, Chair, Board of Health Date

Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Medical Officer of Health & CEO Date

11 |Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

By-Law No. 2024-03
A by-law to govern the management and financing of the Board of Health’s
physical properties.

WHEREAS the Health Protection and Promotion Act (HPPA) RSO 1990, c. H.7 Section 52 (3)
permits a Board of Health to acquire and hold real property for the purpose of carrying out the
functions of the Board and may sell, exchange, lease, mortgage or otherwise charge or dispose
of real property owned by it;

AND WHEREAS the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS): Regquirements for Programs,
Services, and Accountability 2021, Fiduciary Requirement #10 (page 65), requires that a Board
of Health shall pass by-laws respecting the management of its property;

AND WHEREAS the OPHS: Requirements for Programs, Services, and Accountability 2021
Fiduciary Requirements Domain: Requirements #14 (a), 17, 18, 20 & 21, including compliance
with the Community Health Capital Programs Policy, require that a Board of Health that owns its
own building(s) shall maintain a Capital Funding Plan for fixed assets to ensure that funding for
capital projects is appropriately managed and reported;

AND WHEREAS the Ontario Municipal Act, 2001, as amended, requires that a Board shall
adopt policies for the sale or disposition of land,;

NOW THEREFORE the Board of Health for Hastings & Prince Edward Counties Health Unit
enacts as follows:

1. Definitions

a) “Agency” means Hastings Prince Edward Public Health,

b) “Board” means the Board of Health for Hastings & Prince Edward Counties Health Unit,
operating as Hastings Prince Edward Public Health,

c) “HPPA” means the Health Protection and Promotion Act, RSO 1990, c. H.7, as amended,
and

d) “Municipal Act” means the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended.

2. Board to Hold Title

2.1 The Board shall hold title to any real property acquired by the Board for the purpose of
carrying out the functions of the Board and may sell, exchange, lease, mortgage or
otherwise charge or dispose of real property owned by it [HPPA Section 52 (3)].

2.2 Section 2.1 does not apply unless the Board has first obtained the consent of the
Councils of the majority of the municipalities within the Agency by the Board [HPPA
Section 52 (4)].

3. Sale of Land
3.1 Prior to the sale of any real property owned by the Board, the Board shall:

12|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/01m25
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

a) declare the real property to be surplus by means of a by-law or resolution passed
at a meeting open to the public, and

b) obtain, not more than one (1) year before the date of sale, at least one appraisal of
the fair market value of the real property from such person as the Director of
Corporate Services considers qualified.

3.2 Notice to the public of a proposed sale of real property owned by the Board shall be
given prior to the date of the sale by publication in a newspaper that is of sufficiently
general paid or unpaid circulation within the Agency area to give the public reasonable
notice of the proposed sale.

3.3 Despite the requirements of Clause 3.1(b) of the by-law, and subject to the
requirements of Clause 3.2, the Board may sell any real property owned by it to any
one of the following classes of public bodies without first obtaining an appraisal:

a) any municipality within the Agency served by the Board,

b) alocal board, as defined in the Municipal Affairs Act, R.S.0. 1990, Chapter M.46,
Part 1, and

c) The Crown in Right of Ontario or of Canada and their agencies.

4, Property Committee

The Board may, at its discretion, appoint a committee, named the Property Committee, to:

a) assess the current and future physical property requirements of the Agency,

b) research and cost alternatives, including new properties, capital improvements or
other means, and

c) report on such and make recommendations to the Board.

5. Capital Funding Plan

The Board shall maintain a Capital Funding Plan under the guidance of, but separate and
apart from, the Strategic Plan. The purpose of the Capital Funding Plan is to:

a) assess and report on the future capitalization needs of the Board in securing and
maintaining physical properties adequate to carry out the functions of the Board,

b) review, approve or reject, and set priorities for capital projects and funding
requirements, and set timelines for undertaking such projects, and

c) define oversight and governance policies to manage and remain appropriately
informed on in-process capital projects.

6. Property Management Responsibility

Responsibility for the care and maintenance of all property required by the Board shall rest
with the Director of Corporate Services. This responsibility shall include the following:

a) replacement of or major repairs to capital items, such as the heating, cooling, and
ventilation systems, roof and structural work, plumbing, lighting and wiring

b)  maintenance and repair of the parking areas and exterior of the building

c) care and upkeep of the grounds of the property

d) cleaning, maintaining, decorating and repairing of the interior of the building

13|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m46#BK1
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m46#BK1

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

e) maintenance of up-to-date fire and liability insurance coverage to reflect the current
inventory, which will be updated each December.

7. Capital Development Project Responsibility

Responsibility for the management of major capital development projects, such as new
property construction or major leasehold improvement projects, shall rest with the Director
of Corporate Services. Alternatively, the Board may also approve the appointment of an
external capital project manager who shall not be a member of the Board. This
responsibility shall include:

a) direction of all architects, designers, and contractors related to the capital project,

b) election or design decisions regarding mechanical systems or other capital items,
such as the heating, cooling, and ventilation systems; roof and structural work;
plumbing; lighting; and wiring,

c)  monitoring and reporting to the Board on the status, issues, costs, and timelines of
the project, and

d) performing other capital project related duties as may be determined by the Board.

8. Statutory Requirements

The Board shall ensure all such properties comply with applicable statutory requirements
contained in local, provincial, and federal legislation (e.g. building and fire codes).

9. Conflict with other Statutes

Where there is conflict between any part(s) of this by-law and any statute or regulation, the
statute or regulation shall take precedence.

10. Severability

If a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction declares any portion of this by-law to be
illegal or unenforceable, that portion of this by-law will be considered severed from the
remainder of this by-law, which shall continue to be in full force and effect.

11. Previous By-laws Rescinded
All previous by-laws governing the management and financing of the Board of Health’'s
physical properties are hereby rescinded.

12. By-law into effect

This by-law shall come into force and take effect immediately upon the approval of the
Chair of the Board of Health and the Medical Officer of Health.

Jan O’'Neill, Chair, Board of Health Date

Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Medical Officer of Health & CEO Date

l4|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

By-Law 2024-04
A by-law to provide rules governing the proceedings of the Hastings & Prince
Edward Counties Health Unit Board of Health

Table of Contents

1. DEFINITIONS
2. GENERAL
3 MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
3.1 Regular Meetings
3.2 Special Meetings
3.3 Open Meetings
3.4 Closed Sessions
4, OFFICERS
4.1 Election of Officers
4.2 Duties of the Chair
4.3 Vice Chair
5 ORDER OF BUSINESS
6. OPENING PROCEDURE AND QUORUM
7. ADDRESSING THE BOARD AND CONDUCT OF VISITORS
8 CONDUCT OF MEMBERS
9. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST
10. QUESTIONS OF PRIVILEGE AND POINTS OF ORDER
11. RULES OF DEBATE
12. VOTING
13 COMMUNICATIONS
14. CLOSED SESSIONS
14.1 Order of Business
14.2 Opening Procedure for Closed Sessions
14.3 Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest at Closed Sessions
14.4  Procedures for Closed Sessions
14.5 Closed Session Agendas and Minutes
14.6 Closed Session Confidentiality
14.7 Attendance at Closed Session
15. BY-LAWS
16. NOTICE
17. DUTIES OF THE SECRETARY
18. APPOINTMENT, ORGANIZATION AND CONDUCT OF COMMITTEES
19. CORPORATE SEAL
20. EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS
21. INTERPRETATION
22. BY-LAWS RESCINDED

WHEREAS it is necessary and expedient to establish rules and regulations for governing
proceedings of the Board pursuant to the provisions of the Health Protection and Promotion Act
(HPPA), the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS): Requirements for Programs, Services,
and Accountability 2021, and the Municipal Act, 2001, as amended,;

15|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/01m25

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

NOW THEREFORE the Board of Health for the Hastings & Prince Edward Counties Health Unit
enacts rules governing the proceedings of the Board of Health as follows:

1. Definitions

a) “Agency” means Hastings Prince Edward Public Health;

b) “Agreement” means the agreement between the City of Belleville, the County of
Hastings, the City of Quinte West, and the County of Prince Edward and the Board of
Health under the Health Protection and Promotion Act;

c) “Board” means the Board of Health for the Hastings & Prince Edward Counties Health
Unit operating as Hastings Prince Edward Public Health;

d) “Chair’ means the Chair of the Board elected under this by-law or any person
presiding at the meeting of the Board and shall include a Presiding Officer;

e) “City/County” means the Corporation of the City of Belleville, the County of Hastings,
the Corporation of the City of Quinte West, the Corporation of the County of Prince
Edward;

f) “Committee” means a Committee of the Board, but does not include the Committee of
a Whole;

g) “Committee of a Whole” means all the members present at a meeting of the Board
sitting in Committee;

h) “Council” means the Council of the City/County;
i) “Meeting” means a meeting of the Board;
i) “Member” means a member of the Board;

k) “Secretary” means the Secretary of the Board of Health, or in their absence, the
Medical Officer of Health, or designate.

2. General

2.1 In all the proceedings at or taken by this Board, the following rules and regulations
shall be observed and shall be the rules and regulations for the order and dispatch
of business at the Board and in the Committees thereof.

2.2 Any procedural matter not covered by this by-law shall be decided by reference to
Robert’s Rules of Order.

3. Meetings of the Board

3.1 Regular Meetings

3.1.1 The regular meetings shall be held at dates and times as determined by resolution
of the Board at its-first last meeting of the year for the next year.

3.1.2 The Board by resolution may alter the time, date or place of any meeting.

3.1.3 Board meetings shall be held at 179 North Park Street, Belleville, Ontario, unless
otherwise specified.

3.1.4 Committee meetings shall be held virtually, unless otherwise specified.

3.1.5 Location of meetings will be at the discretion of the Board and/or Committee Chair
based on agenda items in the meeting.

16|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

3.1.6 Despite the foregoing, the Chair may authorize a regular or special meeting to be
held at another location.

3.2  Special Meetings

3.2.1 A special meeting shall not be summoned for a time which conflicts with a regular
meeting or a meeting previously called for the participating Council(s) or
Municipality(ies).

3.2.2 A special meeting may be called by the Chair of the Board of Health.

3.2.3 Any three Board members, by written communication to the Board Secretary, shall
initiate a special meeting.

3.3 Open Meetings

Except as authorized under this By-law, all Board and Committee meetings shall
be open to the public, except that the Board or Committee may hold a closed
session to deal with matters qualifying for consideration at a closed session as set
out in Section 3.4 of this By-law.

3.4 Closed Sessions
3.4.1 A closed session may be held if the subject matter being considered relates to:

a. the security of the property of the Board,

personal matters about an identifiable individual, including Board employees,

a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the Board,

labour relations or employee negotiations,

litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals,

affecting the Board,

f. advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications
necessary for that purpose,

g. a matter in respect of which the Board may hold a closed session under
another Act,

® oo o

h. information explicitly supplied in confidence to the Board by Canada, a
province or a Crown agency,

i. atrade secret or scientific, technical, commercial, financial or labour relations
information, supplied in confidence to the Board, which, if disclosed, could
reasonably be expected to prejudice significantly the competitive position or
interfere significantly with the contractual or other negotiations of a person,
group of persons, or organization,

j. atrade secret or scientific, technical, commercial or financial information that
belongs to the Board and has monetary value or potential monetary value,

k. a position, plan, procedure, criteria or instruction to be applied to any
negotiations carried on or to be carried on by or on behalf of the Board,

l. education or training of Board Members, and where at the session no Board
Member discusses or otherwise deals with any matter in a way that materially
advances the business or decision-making of the Board or Committee.

17|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

4.

3.4.2 For any meeting at which there are items to be considered in a closed session, the

4.1

4.2

public agenda for that meeting will provide:

i.  as much information as possible about the nature of each closed session item
without jeopardizing the Board’s position on the matter or without disclosing
any confidential information that may be discussed, and

ii. the subsection(s) of the Municipal Act, 2001 or other applicable legislation,
which authorizes each item to be considered at the closed session.

Officers

Election of Officers

At the first meeting of the Board of Health in each year, the members of the Board
shall elect one of the members to be Chair and one to be Vice Chair of the Board
for the year [HPPA 57(2)].

Duties of the Chair
4.2.1 The Chair shall preside at all Board meetings.

4.2.2 When the Chair is unable to act, for any reason, or their office is vacant, or
if they refuse to act, the Vice Chair of the Board will act in their place and
while so acting, they have, and may exercise, all the rights, powers and
authority of the Board Chair.

4.2.3 When the Chair and Vice Chair are both absent, the Board, by resolution,
may appoint one of its members to act as Presiding Officer in their place
and stead, and while so acting, they have, and may exercise, all the rights,
powers and authority of the Board Chair.

4.2.4 Notwithstanding Sections 4.2.2 and 4.2.3, the Chair may delegate a Board
member to act on their behalf, when necessary, for other responsibilities of
the Chair.

4.2.5 The Chair shall:

i.  open the Board meeting by taking the chair and calling the Board
members to order, and shall announce the business before the Board
in the order in which it is to be acted upon,

ii.  receive and submit, in the proper manner, all motions presented by
Board members,

iii.  putto vote all questions that are regularly moved and seconded, or
necessarily arise in the course of proceedings, and to announce the
result,

iv.  decline to put to vote motions that infringe the rules of procedure,

V. restrain the Board members, within the rules of order, when engaged in
debate,
vi.  enforce, on all occasions, the observance of order and decorum
among the Board’s members,
vii.  expel or exclude from any meeting any person who has been guilty of
improper conduct at the meeting,

18|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

viii.  receive all messages and other communications and announce them
to the Board,

iX. authenticate, by their signature, when necessary, all by-laws,
resolutions, and minutes of the Board,

X. inform the Board, when necessary or when referred to for the
purpose, on a point of order or usage,

xi.  represent and support the Board, declaring it's will, and implicitly
obeying its decisions in all things,

xii.  ensure the decisions of the Board are in conformity with the laws and
by-laws governing the activities of the Board,
xiii.  adjourn the meeting when the business is concluded, and

xiv.  adjourn the meeting without question in the case of grave disorder
arising in the Board’s meeting room.

4.2.6 The Chair is a voting member of the Board.

4.2.7 If the Chair desires to leave the chair for the purpose of taking part in the
debate, or otherwise, they shall call on the Vice Chair, or in their absence,
one of the other Board members, to fill their place until they resume the chair.

4.3 Vice Chair

The Vice Chair shall have all the powers and perform all the duties of the Chair of
the Board in the absence or disability of the Chair of the Board, together with such
powers and duties, if any, as may be from time to time assigned by the Board.

5. Order of Business

5.1 The Order of Business for regular meetings of the Board shall be:

Call to Order

Roll Call (if required)

Land Acknowledgment Statement

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof
Elections

Approval of the Agenda

Closed Session

Motions Arising from Closed Session

Approval of the Minutes of the Previous Board Meeting
10. Business Arising from the Minutes

11. Deputations

12. Committee Reports

13. Report of the Medical Officer of Health

14. Staff Reports

15. Correspondence and Communications

16. New Business

17. Information Items

18. Date of the Next Meeting

19. Adjournment

CoNorwWNE

5.2 For special meetings, the agenda shall be prepared as provided in Section 5.1, so
far as is applicable.

19|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

5.3

54

The business of each meeting shall be taken up in the order in which it stands upon
the agenda, unless otherwise decided by the Board.

No other matters except for those on the agenda shall be dealt with unless there is
majority support of the Board.

6. Opening Procedure and Quorum

6.1
6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

A majority of the members of the Board of Health constitutes a quorum of the Board.

As soon as there is a quorum after the hour fixed for the meeting, the Chair of the
Board or Vice Chair, or person appointed to act in their place and stead, shall take
the chair and call the members to order.

If there is no quorum within thirty (30) minutes after the time appointed for the
meeting, the Secretary shall call the roll and take down the names of the members
then present and the meeting shall then adjourn until the next day of meeting.

Upon any member directing the attention of the Chair to the fact that a quorum is not
present, the Secretary, at the request of the Chair, shall, within three (3) minutes
following such request, record the names of those members present and advise the
Chair if a quorum is or is not present.

Board members are expected to attend all scheduled in-person meetings but may
participate electronically in both open and closed meetings when circumstances such
as illness or disability prevent attending in person.

A member participating electronically may be counted in determining whether or not
a quorum of members is present at any time during the meeting. [MA Section 238(3.5)]

Electronic participation may only be considered when such telephone or electronic
means permits all persons participating in the meeting to communicate adequately
with each other during the meeting.

Where the number of members who, by reason of the provisions of the Municipal
Conflict of Interest Act, are disabled from participating in a meeting is such that at
that meeting the remaining members are not of sufficient number to constitute a
quorum, then, despite any other general or special Act, the remaining number of
members shall be deemed to constitute a quorum, provided such number is not less
than two. [MCIA Section 7(1)]

7. Addressing the Board and Conduct of Visitors

7.1

7.2

7.3

No person, except Board members and officers of the Board, shall be allowed to sit
at the Board table during meetings, without permission of the Board.

Each deputation will be allowed a maximum of one speaker for a maximum of fifteen
ten (10) 45) minutes.

The Board shall render its decision in each case in an expedient manner after
deputations have been heard.

8. Conduct of Members

8.1 Unless excused by the Board Chair, board members are expected to attend 100% of

the regularly scheduled meetings of the Board or a Committee of which they are a
member or, if unable to attend in person, inform the Board Chair and/or the Chair of

20|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m50
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m50

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

the appropriate Committee and the Board Secretary as early as possible (preferably
at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting).

Any attendance concerns will be addressed during an in-camera session and
appropriate action will be taken at the discretion of the Board Chair.
8.2 A member shall not:
a) use offensive words or unparliamentary language at Board Meetings,
b) disobey,
i. the rules of the Board,

ii. adecision of the Chair or of the Board on questions of order or practice that
are in response to a parliamentary inquiry,

iii. adecision of the Chair upon the interpretation of the rules of the Board,
rules of order or practice, except that a member may lodge an appeal of the
Chair’s decision which, upon seconding, is put to the floor to be decided by
a vote to sustain the Chair’s decision,

c) leave their seat or make any noise or disturbance while a vote is being taken and
until the result is declared, or

d) interrupt a member while speaking except to raise a point of order.
8.3 In case any member persists in a breach of the foregoing section after having been

called to order by the Chair, the Chair, without debate, shall put the question “Shall
the member be ordered to leave their seat for the duration of the meeting?”

8.4 If the Board votes in the affirmative, the Chair shall order the member to leave their
seat for the duration of the meeting.

8.5 If the member apologizes, the Chair, with the approval of the Board, may permit the
member to resume their seat.

9. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
9.1 A member shall disclose a conflict of interest in accordance with the Municipal
Conflict of Interest Act, including the Duty of Member section:

I.  shall, prior to any consideration of the matter at the meeting, disclose the
interest and the general nature thereof,

ii. shall not take part in the discussion of, or vote on, any question in respect of the
matter, and

iii. shall not attempt in any way whether before, during or after the meeting to
influence the voting on any such question. [MCIA Section 5(1)]

9.2 If the conflict under Subsection 9.1 above is with respect to an item on a closed
session agenda, in addition to complying with the requirements of Subsection 9.1
above, the member shall forthwith leave the closed session or that part of the closed
session during which the matter is under consideration. [MCIA Section 5 (2)]

9.3 Every declaration of interest and the general nature thereof made under Section 5
shall, where the meeting is open to the public, be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting by the Secretary. [MCIA Section 6 (1)]

9.4. Every disclosure of interest made in a closed session shall be recorded in the minutes
of the next meeting that is open to the public but not the general nature of that interest
[MCIA Section 6 (2)].

21|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m50
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m50

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

9.5 When the interest of a member has not been disclosed as required by Subsection
9.1 above, by reason of the member’s absence from the meeting referred to therein,
the member shall disclose the interest and otherwise comply with Subsection 9.1,
above, at the first meeting of the Board attended by the member after the meeting
referred to in Subsection 9.1.

9.6 At a meeting at which a member discloses an interest, or as soon as possible
afterwards, the member shall file a written statement of the interest and its general
nature with the Board Chair or the Secretary, as the case may be. [MCIA Section 5.1]

9.7 Where a member, either on his or her own behalf or while acting for, by, with or
through another, has any pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in any matter that is
being considered by an officer or employee of the City/County or Board, or by a
person or body to which the City/County or Board has delegated a power or duty, the
member shall not use his or her office in any way to attempt to influence any
decision or recommendation that results from consideration of the matter. [MCIA
Section 5.2]

10. Questions of Privilege and Points of Order

10.1 When a member desires to address the Board upon a matter that concerns the rights
or privileges of the Board collectively, or as a member thereof, they shall be
permitted to raise such matter of privilege, and a matter of privilege shall take
precedence over other matters.

10.2 When a member desires to call attention to a violation of the rules of procedure, they
shall ask leave of the Chair to raise a point of order, and after leave is granted, they
shall state the point of order with a concise explanation and then not speak until the
Chair has decided the point of order.

10.3 Unless a member immediately appeals to the Board, the decision of the Chair is
final.

10.4 If the decision is appealed, the Board shall decide the question without debate, and
its decision shall be final.

10.5 When the Chair calls a member to order, they shall immediately cease speaking until
the point of order is dealt with, and they shall not speak again without the permission
of the Chair unless to appeal the ruling of the Chair.

11. Rules of Debate

11.1 Every member, prior to speaking to any question or motion, shall respectfully
address the Chair.

11.2 When two or more members ask to speak, the Chair shall name the member who,
in their opinion, first asked to speak.

11.3 A member may speak more than once on a question but, after speaking, shall be
placed at the foot of the list of members wishing to speak.

11.4 No member shall speak to the same question at any one time for longer than five
(5) minutes, except the Board, upon motion, may grant extensions of time for
speaking of up to three (3) minutes for each time extended.

11.5 When itis a member’s turn to speak, before speaking, they, through the Chair, may
ask questions of the Medical Officer of Health to obtain information.

22|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

11.6 Subject to this section, no member may ask a question of the previous speaker
except with the consent of the Chair.

11.7 A member’s question shall not be ironical, rhetorical or offensive; contain epithet,
innuendo, satire or ridicule; be trivial, vague or meaningless; or contain both
guestions and answers.

11.8 Any member may require the question or motion under discussion to be read at
any time during the debate, but not so as to interrupt a member while speaking.

11.9 Every motion shall be moved and seconded, and may be written or verbal at the
option of the Board.

11.10 Every motion shall be deemed to be in the possession of the Board for debate after
it is presented by the Chair, but with permission of the mover and seconder, it may
be withdrawn at any time before amendment or decision.

11.11 When a matter is under debate, no motion shall be received other than a motion:

to adopt,

to amend,

to defer action,

to refer,

to receive,

to adjourn the meeting,

that the vote now be taken, or

to give direction or instructions to officers, employees, or agents of the Board
or persons retained by or under contract with the Board.

S@meoo o

11.12 A motion to defer or refer shall take precedence over any other amendment.

11.13 When a motion that the vote be taken immediately is presented, it shall be put to a
vote without debate. As such a motion limits debate, it requires a two-thirds vote of
the members present to be carried, and if carried, the motion and any amendments
thereto under discussion shall be submitted to a vote forthwith without further
debate.

11.14 A motion relating to a matter not within the jurisdiction of the Board shall not be in
order.

11.15 Only one amendment at a time can be presented to the main motion and only one
amendment can be presented to an amendment, but when the amendment to the
amendment has been disposed of, another may be introduced and when an
amendment has been decided, another may be introduced.

11.16 The amendment to the amendment, if any, shall be voted on first; then, if no other
amendment to the amendment is presented, the amendment shall be voted on
next; then, if no other amendment is introduced, the main motion, or if any
amendment has been carried, the main motion, as amended, shall be put to a
vote.

11.17 Nothing in this section shall prevent other proposed amendments from being read,
for the information of the members.

11.18 When the question under consideration contains distinct propositions, upon the
request of any member, the vote upon each proposition shall be taken separately.

23|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

12.

13.

14.

11.19 After the Chair commences to take a vote, no member shall speak to or present

another motion until the vote has been taken on such motion, amendment, or sub-
amendment.

11.20 A motion to adjourn the Board Meeting shall be in order except:

Voting

12.1

12.2.

12.3

12.4

i. when a member is in possession of the floor,
ii. when it has been decided that the vote be taken immediately, or
iii. during the taking of a vote.

The manner of determining the decision of the Board on a motion shall be by show
of hands.

During a meeting of the Board, when a member present requests a recorded vote
on a motion, all members present shall vote, when polled by the Secretary, by
verbally indicating being in favour of or opposed to the motion, and the Secretary
shall record the results of the vote in the minutes.

The Chair shall conduct the recording of votes of all members in consecutive
alphabetical order, with the exception of the Chair, who votes last.

A member may request a recorded vote immediately prior to or immediately
subsequent to the taking of a vote on a motion.

Communications

13.1

13.2

Every communication to be presented to the Board must be legibly written or
printed and must not contain any impertinent or improper matter, and shall be
signed by at least one person.

Every staff report presented to the Board must be in the prescribed format as
determined by the Secretary.

Closed Session

14.1

Order of Business

14.1.1 The Order of Procedure shall be:
1. Callto Order
Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof
Approval of the Agenda
Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting
New Business
Motion to Return to the Open Meeting

ook wh

14.1.2 Where the Board elects to go into a closed session in the midst of a regular
or special meeting of Board or Committee, the matter(s) to be discussed
must be on the public agenda or, if the matter is urgent, added to the public
agenda under the provisions of the HPPA and Subsection 5.4, of this by-

24|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

14.2

14.3

14.4

law?! and the Order of Business in the closed session shall be as follows:

1. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof
2. Items for Consideration
3. Motion to Return to Open Meeting

Opening Procedure for Closed Sessions

Before a meeting is closed, a motion shall be made in the open meeting and
carried, identifying:
i the fact of holding the closed session,
ii. the general nature of the items to be discussed, and
iii.  the subsection(s) of the Municipal Act or other applicable legislation,
which authorizes each item to be considered at the closed session.

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest at Closed Sessions

Any Member, prior to any consideration of any matter at a closed session, shall
disclose any pecuniary interest and the general nature thereof, in accordance with
the provisions of Section 9.2.

Procedures for Closed Sessions

14.4.1 The rules governing the procedure of the Board and the conduct of
members shall be observed in closed sessions.

14.4.2 No matter shall be discussed at a closed session that is not consistent with
the motion to go into closed session, which was adopted during the opening
procedure.

14.4.3 If a matter arises in a closed session that a member feels is not appropriate
to consider in closed session, the member shall be provided the opportunity
to explain their reasons and to persuade the Board to have the matter
discussed in an open meeting.

Where, following such endeavour the majority of the Board believes the
matter is to be considered in closed session, the member may withdraw
from the meeting room during consideration of the matter, and the
Secretary shall so note in the minutes.

14.4.4 Once in a closed session, no item may be added to the agenda for that
closed session.

14.4.5 No motions shall be made in closed session, except for procedural matters
or for giving direction or instructions to a Committee, officers, employees or
agents of the Board or persons retained by or under contract with the
Board.

14.4.6 A meeting shall not be closed to the public during the taking of a vote.

1 No other matters except for those on the agenda shall be dealt with unless there is majority support of the Board.

25|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

14.4.7 Despite Subsection14.4.6 above, during a closed session, a vote may be
taken for a procedural matter or for giving directions or instructions to a
Committee, officers, employees or agents of the Board or persons retained
by or under contract with the Board.

14.5 Closed Session Agendas and Minutes

14.5.1 The Secretary shall prepare an agenda for the closed session in
accordance with the Order of Business, Subsection 14.1.1, which shall
include a list of items to be considered.

14.5.2 The Secretary shall circulate the closed session agenda to all members of
the Board and to such staff as directed by the Chair.

14.5.3 The closed session’s agenda and attachments shall be clearly identified as
“Confidential.”

14.5.4 Minutes shall be kept of all closed sessions, identifying the members
present and absent, the officers present, in the same fashion as those kept
for open meetings; they shall correspond directly to the prepared closed
session agenda; they shall identify any deviation from the agenda or the
motion to go into closed session made at the open meeting; and they shall
note any direction or instructions given.

14.6  Closed Session Confidentiality

14.6.1 No member of the Board shall distribute any reports or items, or disclose
the nature or content of discussions regarding any matters that are part of a
closed session agenda without the prior approval of the Board or
Committee.

14.6.2 The Secretary shall be responsible to-maintain for maintaining a
confidential copy of all agendas and minutes of closed sessions.

14.7 Attendance at Closed Session

14.7.1 All members of the Board may attend a closed session, except as provided
for in Section 9.2.

14.7.2 The Secretary shall attend all closed sessions, or as directed by the Chair
of the Board.

14.7.3 Attendance at closed session by officers, employees or agents of the Board
or persons retained by or under contract with the Board, shall be at the
discretion of the Chair. The Medical Officer of Health has the right to attend
all closed sessions, except those in which their performance or
remuneration is discussed, as provided in the HPPA s 70.

15. By-Laws

15.1 The meeting agenda shall list all proposed by-laws to be placed before the Board
for consideration.

16. Notice

26|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

16.1 The Secretary shall give notice of each regular meeting of the Board and each
Committee to the public, members thereof, the Medical Officer of Health and to the
management of the Agency concerned with such meeting, not later than three (3)
days previous to the day of the meeting.

16.2 The Secretary shall give notice of each special meeting of the Board and each
Committee to the public, members thereof, the Medical Officer of Health and to the
management of the Agency concerned with such meeting not later than two (2)
days previous to the day of the meeting.

16.3 The Secretary shall give notice of each regular and special meeting of the Board
and each Committee to the public by posting such notice on the Board of Health’'s
website and making it available for public viewing at the Main Office at 179 North
Park Street, Belleville, Ontario.

16.4 The notice shall be accompanied by the agenda and any other matter, so far as
known, to be brought before such a meeting.

16.5 The notice shall be delivered to each member, by hard copy or by electronic means.

16.6 The notice calling a special meeting of the Board shall state the business to be
considered at the special meeting; no business other than that stated in the notice
shall be considered at such a meeting except with the majority consent of the
members present and voting.

16.7 Lack of receipt of the notice shall not affect the validity of holding the meeting or
any action taken thereat.

17. Duties of the Secretary

17.1 The Secretary, in consultation with the Chair, shall have prepared an agenda for
the use of the members at all meetings of the Board in accordance with the Order
of Business as set out in (5.1) of this by-law.

17.2 The Secretary shall prepare and maintain Minutes of all Board meetings, to
include:
i. the place, date and time of the meeting,
ii. the beginning and ending time of meetings,
ii. the names of Presiding Officer and members of the Board and record of
attendance of the members,
iv. the names of officers present,
v. any disclosure of pecuniary interest declared by any member and the general
nature thereof,
vi. arecord of each item for consideration,
vii. all motions and disposition of each on each item,
viii. the names of deputations, and
ix. all other proceedings of the meeting without note or comment.

17.3 The Secretary shall maintain a record of all minutes of meetings that shall be
signed by the Chair upon approval of same by the Board, which, with the exception
of minutes of closed sessions, shall be posted on the Board of Health’s website
and available for public viewing at the Main Office at 179 North Park Street,
Belleville, Ontario.

27|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

18. Appointment, Organization and Conduct of Committees

18.1 At the first meeting in any year, the Board shall appoint members to the Standing
Committees of the Board.

18.2 The Board may appoint representatives to requested bodies or commissions and
Committees from time to time to consider such matters as specified by the Board.

18.3 The rules governing the procedure of the Board shall be observed in the
Committees insofar as applicable.

18.4 Notwithstanding Subsection 18.3, Section 14 of this by-law regarding closed
sessions, shall be observed in the Committees.

18.5 It shall be the duty of the Committee to report to the Board on all matters referred
to it and to recommend such action as it deems necessary.
19. Corporate Seal
The Corporate Seal of the Board shall be in the form impressed herein and shall be kept
by the Secretary of the Board.
20. Execution of Documents

The Board at any time may direct the manner in which and delegate the person or persons
who may sign on behalf of the Board and affix the corporate seal to any particular
contract, arrangement, conveyance, mortgage, obligation, or other document or any class
of contracts, arrangements, conveyances, mortgages, obligations or documents.

21. Interpretation

21.1 Where there is conflict between any part of this by-law and any Statute or
regulation, the Statute or regulation shall take precedence.

21.2 If a court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction declares any portion of this by-law to
be illegal or unenforceable, that portion of this by-law will be considered severed
from the remainder of this by-law, which shall continue to be in full force and effect.

22. By-Laws Rescinded

22.1 All previous by-laws to regulate the proceedings of the Board of Health are hereby

rescinded.
22.2 This by-law shall come into force and take effect immediately upon approval
thereof.
Jan O’Neill, Chair, Board of Health Date
Dr. Ethan Toumishey, Medical Officer of Health & CEO Date

28|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

BOARD POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Accountability and Transparency

PURPOSE:

1. To provide a process for the Board of Health (Board) to ensure the two main pillars of good
governance—accountability and transparency—as outlined in the Ontario Public Health
Standards (OPHS): Requirements for Programs, Services, and Accountability, and as
defined below—are incorporated into the activities of the Board; the appointed committees
and sub-committees; the administration of the Agency; and the relationship between the
Board and the Ministry of Health (Ministry).

a. Accountability ensures members of the Board accept responsibility for their actions and
openly disclose the reason(s) that justify those actions.

b. Transparency implies honesty and openness, allowing outside parties to freely observe
how decisions are made and implemented.

2. This policy also meets the requirement in the Municipal Act 2001 to adopt and maintain
policies to ensure that a local Board is accountable to the public for its actions and the
manner in which the Board will try to ensure that its actions are transparent to the public.

APPLICABILITY:

1. The Public Health Accountability Framework articulates the scope of the accountability
relationship between the Board and the Ministry and establishes expectations in four (4)
domains:

p

Delivery of Programs and Services,

b. Fiduciary Requirements,

c. Good Governance and Management Practices, and
d. Public Health Practice.

2. The Transparency Framework: Disclosure and Reporting Requirements articulates the
expectations of public disclosure by boards of health to support enhanced transparency and
promote awareness, understanding and public confidence in Ontario’s public health system
in two domains:

a. Protecting the Public’s Health, and
b. Public Reporting.

3. This policy applies to the Board, all appointed committees and sub-committees of the Board.

POLICY:
1. The Board shall:

a. conduct themselves with accountability and transparency in all proceedings and
business matters, and

b. comply with the requirements of Board Policies, By-Laws, relevant legislation and the
OPHS; Requirements for Programs, Services, and Accountability and ensure public
access to key organizational documents that demonstrate responsible use of public
funds and information to allow the public to make informed decisions about their health.

29|Page


https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/01m25
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

PROCEDURE:

1. Accountability to the Ministry by the Board will be demonstrated through the submission of
planning and reporting tools, including the Board Annual Service Plan and Budget
Submission, Performance Reports, and Annual Report, to demonstrate the Board is meeting
defined expectations and providing appropriate oversight for public funding and resources.

2. Accountability and transparency in the decision-making processes of the Board will be
implemented by making the activities and practices that are currently in place, or are in
process, available and accessible for review to the public on the Hastings Prince Edward
Public Health (HPEPH) website, or, upon request, from the Executive Assistant to the
Medical Officer of Health. This will include, but is not limited to, the following:

Annual Report,

Audited Financial Statements,
Strategic Plan,

Population Health Assessment,

Results of routine and complaint-based inspections, convictions of tobacco and e-
cigarette retailers, infection prevention and control lapses, drinking water advisories for
small drinking water systems, and beach water quality reports,

f.  Notices, Agendas, Attachments and Minutes of all Board meetings, with the exception of
those meetings that are closed subject to the provisions of the Municipal Act and the
Procedure By-law, and

g. Other special reports, dashboard, summaries or documents outlining the processes,
activities, and program outcomes of the organization, deemed necessary by the Board to
ensure the principle of accountability and transparency, i.e. programs and activities to
improve the health of HPEPH communities and the dissemination of public health
information.

® a0 op

30|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/01m25

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Appointment of External Advisors

PURPOSE:

To outline the process for appointing external advisors to provide specialized professional
services or advice on matters pertaining to the Board of Health’s (Board) oversight,
accountability, and stewardship responsibilities.

POLICY:

1. External advisors may be retained by the Medical Officer of Health (MOH) or designate, as
required, subject to the availability of budget and applicable procurement policies of the
organization.

2. Such advisors may include, but are not limited to the following:

a. Legal Counsel,

b. Financial Advisors, Accountants or Auditors,

c. Engineers or Property Managers, and

d. Management and Human Resource Consultants.

3. External advisors will be licensed under the appropriate governing body, where such exists,
and will be at arm’s-length from the members of the Board.

PROCEDURE:
External advisors, within their area of expertise, shall:
a. Perform duties as may be required by the Board or the MOH or designate.

b. Have aright to access, as required, during reasonable hours, to all books, records,
documents, accounts, and vouchers of the Board.

c. Be entitled to require from the members of the Board and from the officers of the Board
such information and explanations as, in their opinion, may be necessary to enable them
to carry out such duties as are prescribed by the appointment.

d. Be entitled to attend any meeting of the members of the Board and to receive all notices
relating to any such meetings that any member is entitled to receive, and to be heard at
any such meeting that they attend on any part of the business of the meeting that
concerns their area of professional expertise.

e. Complete an Oath of Confidentiality and Statement of Privacy, if deemed appropriate.
f. Enter into a Contract for Service, as deemed appropriate.

g. Beregularly evaluated for the quality of service in relation to the contract terms and
receive clear expectations and performance feedback.

31|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Board Representation at External Functions

PURPOSE:

To outline how Board of Health (Board) members represent the Board at identified ministry or
inter-agency bodies or functions. This policy is not intended to cover general training events
such as the alPHa conference or symposiums but rather the appointment of a specific Board
member to represent the Board as requested for inter-agency bodies or functions.

POLICY:
The Board, or Chair of the Board, may appoint specific Board members to act as
representatives at identified Ministry of Health or inter-agency bodies or functions.

PROCEDURE:

1. The Board may appoint members by resolution at a scheduled Board meeting.
Appointments may also be completed at the discretion of the Chair with a documented
resolution at the next scheduled Board meeting.

2. Appointed Board members shall:

a. Represent the Board in a judicious manner.

b. Whenever possible, defer to the Medical Officer of Health or designate all questions
relating to operations of the Agency including media questions.

c. Provide the Board with a verbal, or where requested, a written report of the events,
discussions and decisions of such bodies or functions at the next meeting of the Board
that the member attends, or at an earlier time, if requested by the Board.

d. Seek input as required from the Board of Health.

3. The appointee(s) may attend such meetings or functions at the Board’s expense unless
reimbursement is handled by the sponsoring body.

4. Reimbursement of expenses for attendance at external functions and conferences will be in
accordance with the Board Remuneration and Reimbursement of Expenses Policy.

32|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Board of Health Confidentiality

PURPOSE:

1.

To outline the process for establishing a formal agreement for confidentiality amongst
members of the Board of Health (Board) in the interest of upholding the confidentiality and
privacy policies and procedures of the Municipal Act, Hastings Prince Edward Public Health
(HPEPH), the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (MFIPPA),
and the Personal Health Information Protection Act (PHIPA) with respect to the handling of
any confidential, personal and personal health information.

2. To ensure that such information is safeguarded from disclosure to anyone other than to
those with legal or statutory authority to be privy to any such information.

POLICY:

1. All Board members shall review and sign the HPEPH approved Board of Health Statement
of Confidentiality (as per attached Appendix).

2. The signed statements will be kept on file by the Executive Assistant (EA) to the Medical
Officer of Health (MOH) or designate.

PROCEDURE:

1. The EA to the MOH or designate will provide the Statement of Confidentiality form to Board
members for signatures at the first meeting attended by each individual member.

2. All Board members will sign the statement and return it to the EA to the MOH, or designate,
for filing.

ATTACHMENTS:

Appendix — Board of Health Statement of Confidentiality

33|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/01m25
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/04p03

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Board of Health Statement of Confidentiality

Board of Health Statement of Confidentiality

| acknowledge that, in the course of fulfilling my duties on the Board of Health (Board)
for Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH), | may receive or have access to
information that is confidential to HPEPH or is identifiable regarding the personal /
personal health information of an employee of the Board, a fellow member of the Board,
an HPEPH client, or a partner agency having business with HPEPH.

This information may come to me either directly, in my capacity as a member of the
Board, or indirectly, as a result of my proximity to a HPEPH employee; Board member;
member of the public; government representative or agency; member of the media; or a
person associated with a health, community, law enforcement, or other partner agency.

| further acknowledge that, as a member of the HPEPH Board of Health, and in the
interest of upholding privacy policies and procedures of HPEPH, the Municipal Freedom
of Information and Protection of Privacy Act (MFIPPA), and the Personal Health
Information Protection Act (PHIPA), with respect to the handling of any confidential,
personal and personal health information, | have a professional and ethical obligation to
take all necessary steps to ensure that such information is safeguarded from disclosure
to anyone other than to those with legal or statutory authority to be privy to any such
information.

Having read the preceding statement and understanding my obligations as a member of
the Board of Health for HPEPH, | state that during the tenure of, and following the
conclusion of my appointment to the Board, | shall keep all information confidential and
comply with the privacy policies and procedures of the Municipal Act, HPPA, MFIPPA,
and PHIPA (where applicable), respecting HPEPH clients, personnel, collective
bargaining, legal, and other matters specifically determined by Board motion to matters
of confidence, including matters dealt with during closed meetings of the Board.

Signature, Board of Health Member Date

Name of Board of Health Member (please print)

34|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/04p03
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/04p03

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Board of Health Self-Evaluation Process

PURPOSE:
To outline the Board of Health’s (Board) self-evaluation process for its governance
practices.

POLICY:
1. The Board shall complete an internal evaluation of its governance practices every two years.

2. The evaluation results will be reviewed by the Board and a list of recommendations for
improvement in Board effectiveness will be developed as required.

PROCEDURE:
1. The Self-Evaluation Process will be completed during the first and third year after municipal
elections.

2. The Executive Assistant (EA) to the Medical Officer of Health (MOH) will forward each
member of the Board the Evaluation Survey no later than September 30 of the evaluation
year.

3. Board members will complete the survey, either electronically or in hard copy, by October 30
of the evaluation year and return the survey to the EA to the MOH.

4. The EA to the MOH will tabulate the results and forward to the Board to inform the future
work of the Board no later than November 30 of the evaluation year.

5. The Board shall discuss the results at the next scheduled Board meeting.

35|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Conflict of Interest

PURPOSE:

To provide clear expectations and direction for disclosing and managing a conflict of interest
whether actual, potential or perceived and to ensure Board of Health (Board) decisions are
made with integrity, independence, impartiality and accountability at all times.

POLICY:

1. Board members shall comply with the conflict of interest provisions of the Municipal Act and
Municipal Conflict of Interest Act regarding any real, possible or perceived conflict of interest
situations and disclosure of such conflicts. Pecuniary interests shall be reported in
accordance with By-Law Number 2022-04 (Section 9) of Hastings Prince Edward Public
Health (HPEPH).

2. Board members shall act in the best interests of HPEPH at all times and shall not use their
position for personal benefit, financial gain or other business interests in order to ensure
Board duties are performed with integrity and impartiality in a manner that will bear public
scrutiny.

PROCEDURE:
1. Board members will follow the disclosure of pecuniary interest provisions in By-Law Number
2022-04 (Section 9) of HPEPH as required.

2. In circumstances where Board members are unsure of the declaration of any conflict of
interest, the member is encouraged to identify the issue with the Chair of the Board. The
Chair cannot provide a recommendation but may provide direction regarding the Municipal
Act and Municipal Conflict of Interest Act.

36|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/01m25
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m50
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/01m25
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/01m25
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m50

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Delegation of Medical Officer of Health Duties

PURPOSE:
To determine the protocol for delegation of the duties of the Medical Officer of Health (MOH) in
the event they are unable to perform their duties during a short period of absence.

POLICY
1. During the absence of the MOH, the delegation of MOH duties shall automatically be
assumed by an existing Associate Medical Officer of Health (AMOH), if available.

2. Inthe event there is not an available AMOH, the MOH shall ensure that a reciprocal aid
agreement is in place with a roster of Medical Officers of Health from neighbouring Boards
of Health. In the event of a short period of absence, the MOH shall inform the Board of
Health (Board) as soon as feasible and shall ensure that a replacement MOH is secured
through the reciprocal aid agreement.

3. Inthe event the MOH is incapacitated to the extent that communication with the Board is
not possible, the Director of Corporate Services shall immediately advise the Board and
make arrangements for a replacement MOH through the reciprocal aid agreement.

4. For an extended period of absence of the MOH, the Board shall work with the Director of
Corporate Services and Ministry of Health (Ministry) to ensure the appointment of an Acting
MOH as per the MOH-Recruitment, Appointment, Duties and Remuneration policy. Such
appointment shall be in compliance with the requirements of the Health Protection and
Promotion Act (HPPA), and the Ministry policy framework on MOH appointments, reporting
and compensation.

PROCEDURE:
1. The MOH will ensure that a reciprocal aid agreement from neighbouring Boards of Health is
in place with a roster of MOHS.

2. For planned, short-term absences, the MOH will arrange for the appointment of an Acting
MOH from the roster and will communicate the appointment to the Board, Executive Team
and the On-Call roster.

3. Inthe event of an unplanned short-term absence, the Director of Corporate Services will
arrange for the appointment of an Acting MOH from the roster and will communicate the
appointment to the Board of Health and agency as required.

4. Inthe event of an extended period of absence where an Acting MOH is not available
through the roster, the Board shall solicit and appoint an Acting MOH in compliance with the
MOH - Recruitment, Appointment, Duties and Remuneration policy.

5. An Acting Medical Officer of Health shall perform the duties and has authority to exercise
the powers of the MOH of the Board, as per the HPPA.

6. When an Acting MOH has been appointed, the administrative duties of the MOH may be
delegated to the Director of Corporate Services on an ad hoc basis.

37|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Medical Officer of Health: Remuneration

PURPOSE:
To outline the remuneration process for the Medical Officer of Health (MOH) and Associate
Medical Officer of Health (AMOH) at Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH).

POLICY:

1. The remuneration of the MOH/AMOH shall be consistent with the current Ministry policy
framework on MOH/AMOH appointments, reporting and compensation. The framework
provides a salary grid, stipends and expectations for the MOH/AMOH positions and reflects
the agreement between the Ontario Medical Association and the Ministry of Health.

2. The Board shall determine an appropriate base salary for the MOH/AMOH and shall apply
for the Compensation Initiative in accordance with the timing and terms of the Ministry. The
base salary for the MOH/AMOH will be adjusted by any economic increases provided to
management staff at HPEPH.

3. The Board Chair and Vice Chair shall be responsible for overseeing the total compensation
package for the MOH/AMOH and any changes to the terms and conditions of employment.

PROCEDURE:

1. The Director of Corporate Services will work with the Board to ensure a remuneration
process and plan consistent with the Ministry policy framework on MOH/AMOH
compensation.

38|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Medical Officer of Health: Recruitment and Contractual Arrangements

PURPOSE:

To outline the process for the recruitment and contractual arrangements when replacing the
Medical Officer of Health (MOH) or an Associate Medical Officer of Health (AMOH) at Hastings
Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH).

POLICY:
When the MOH has resigned, has been terminated or is on an extended leave of absence, the
Board of Health (Board) shall undertake to appoint a replacement as judiciously as possible.

Such appointments shall be undertaken in consultation with the Ministry of Health (Ministry) and
shall be in compliance with the requirements of the Health Protection and Promotion Act
(HPPA), and the Ministry policy framework on MOH/AMOH appointments, reporting and
compensation.

The Board shall identify a hiring committee and work with HPEPH staff to ensure a recruitment
process is implemented in a timely manner.

PROCEDURE:
1. The Board shall identify the process for recruitment in consultation with the Ministry.

2. The Director of Corporate Services and/or Human Resources Manager may assist the
Board in the process of the MOH/AMOH recruitment as requested. Additionally, the Board
may retain an executive search consultant to assist with the recruitment process.

3. For the MOH an ad hoc Hiring Committee composed of the Chair, Vice Chair, and up to two
additional members of the Board shall conduct interviews and make a recommendation for
hiring of the MOH to the Board.

4. For the AMOH, an ad hoc Hiring Committee composed of the Chair or Vice Chair and an
additional member of the Board shall conduct interviews and make a recommendation for
hiring of the AMOH to the Board. The MOH will also participate in the recruitment of the
AMOH.

5. The Director of Corporate Services shall prepare an offer of employment, including all terms
and conditions of employment. Such contract will be subject to legal advice and approval of
the Board or designated Hiring Committee.

6. HPEPH shall submit the required documentation for the appointment of the new
MOH/AMONH to the Ministry.

7. The Board shall ensure a Communication Plan is developed and implemented to announce
the appointment of the new MOH/AMOH to staff, clients, key stakeholders, community
partners and the general community.

39|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Orientation and Education of the Board of Health

PURPOSE:

To ensure members of the Board of Health (Board) have the knowledge necessary to
understand their roles and their responsibilities to the Board and to Hastings Prince Edward
Public Health (HPEPH) as an organization and to effectively discharge their duties, as soon as
practical following their appointments and throughout their term as a Board member.

POLICY:

1. Orientation of new members of the Board will be provided to increase understanding of
public health within the context of Hastings and Prince Edward Counties and the Province of
Ontario.

2. Board members will be encouraged to:

a. attend and provide feedback on the orientation and education process

b. take advantage of external training and educational opportunities related to public health
governance, and

c. identify areas where additional training would be beneficial

3. New members of the Board will substantially complete their formal orientation within three
(3) months of their appointment to the Board.

PROCEDURE
1. Upon appointment, new members will be provided with a Board Orientation-Manual of
Health Handbook.

2. Updates to the manual will be provided throughout the term as new and relevant information
is received.

3. An Orientation Session will be conducted by the Medical Officer of Health (MOH) and any
other appropriate staff, as determined by the MOH.

4. The MOH shall arrange for additional orientation to particular aspects of HPEPH operations
for one or more members of the Board, or the entire Board, upon request.

5. Orientation will include information such as:

a. Structure, vision, mission, goals and objectives of the Board and HPEPH,
b. Community demographics and their impact on HPEPH operations,

c. History of public health, generally, and in the province of Ontario,
d

Provincial government structure as it pertains to the Board and the involvement,
jurisdiction, and funding streams of the involved ministries,

e. Relevant documents, e.g. Board Policies & Procedures and By-Laws, Ontario Public
Health Standards, pertinent legislation,

f. Background, purpose and utilization of the land acknowledgment and how it relates to
the work of HPEPH.

g. Duties, responsibilities, and legislated conditions of service of Board members,
h. The importance and potential use of Board Competencies,
i. Roles and relationships amongst the Board, the MOH, and the HPEPH Executive Team,

40|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

] Relationship with the member municipalities, their financial obligations, and funding
arrangements,

k. Board members’ fiduciary responsibilities, and
I. Issues that are current for the Board and HPEPH operations, programs and services.

6. Board members will be encouraged to participate in educational opportunities offered
through the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa) or other providers of
governance training. Registration details of external training will be facilitated through the
Executive Assistant to the MOH.

7. Board members will receive on-going education about HPEPH programs and services
through management and staff presentations at Board meetings.

41|Page


https://www.alphaweb.org/

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Performance Review of the Medical Officer of Health

PURPOSE:
To outline the performance review process for the Medical Officer of Health (MOH).

POLICY:

1. The Board of Health (Board) for Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH) recognizes
that regular performance reviews are an important component of leadership development
and accountability.

2. The performance of the MOH will be reviewed and evaluated with respect to the goals and
directions specified in the organization’s Strategic Plan, Ministry of Health Performance
Indicators, the Board’s approved policies, and the goals for the MOH established
collaboratively by the MOH and the Board.

PROCEDURE:
1. The Board will conduct a performance appraisal on an annual basis. Interim guidance and
feedback will be provided between formal reviews.

2. The Chair and Vice Chair of the Board will be responsible for arranging and conducting the
performance appraisal.

3. The performance appraisal will be conducted using an agreed upon and appropriate tool,
such as the one designed by the Association of Local Public Health Agencies (alPHa).

4. The performance appraisal may include feedback from agreed upon external colleagues,
members of the Board, and members of the Executive and Management teams.

5. After feedback has been collected from respondents and collated, a meeting to discuss the
performance review with the MOH will be conducted by the Chair and Vice Chair of the
Board.

6. Following that meeting, the Board will be informed of the outcomes of the review. This
meeting will be closed to the public under the provisions of the Municipal Act and the
Proceedings By-Law. The MOH and all staff members will leave the closed session during
the ensuing discussion.

The Chair shall keep a record of the proceedings of the closed meeting.

Following the closed Board discussion, the MOH will be provided with a final version of the
performance appraisal in writing, and a copy of the review will be placed in the MOH’s
personnel file.

42|Page


https://www.alphaweb.org/

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Remuneration & Reimbursement of Expenses for the Board of Health

PURPOSE:
To outline the process for remuneration and reimbursement of expenses for Board of Health
(Board) members.

POLICY:

1. All members of the Board shall receive remuneration and reimbursement of reasonable and
actual expenses related to official Board activity expenses in accordance with the Health
Protection and Promotion Act (HPPA). [Subsections 49 (4), (5), (6) and (11)]

2. A Board member, other than the Chair, who is a member of the Council of a municipality
and receives annual remuneration / reimbursement expenses by the municipality that
appoints them to the Board, is not eligible for such remuneration or reimbursement of
expenses by the Board. [Subsection 49 (11)]

3. Approved travel expenses that are not paid by the municipality for business of the Board will
be reimbursed to any member who incurs such costs. Such expenses will be reimbursed in
accordance with Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH) travel reimbursement
guidelines.

PROCEDURE:
1. Rate of remuneration

a. Payment of remuneration is issued to Board members for attendance at Board of Health
and committee meetings, other official meetings of the Board, and for attendance at
educational events and conferences or representation at external functions.

i.  Remuneration in the amount of $100.00 is paid to eligible Board members per
meeting, representation or training event or conferences.

ii.  The attendance of Board members at meetings will be verified in the respective
meeting minutes.

iii.  Only designated members of Board Committees will be remunerated for
attendance at committee meetings.

2. Reimbursement of expenses

a. For Board and committee meetings, Board members are responsible for completing the
Attendance Record, or if the meeting is conducted virtually, the EA to the MOH wiill
reference the roll call taken for the purpose of completing the Attendance Record.

b. Eligible members may also claim mieage-kilometrage incurred to attend the meeting on
the same Attendance Record. Mileage Kilometrage claimed should be limited to the out
of pocket cost of driving to the meeting using the most direct route possible to the
meeting. Mileage Kilometrage is reimbursed for travel from the Board member’s home
to the Board meeting or function and back to the Board member’'s home. Mileage
Kilometrage rates are based on the Canada Revenue Agency mileage kilometrage
reimbursement rates.

c. The EA to the MOH will forward the completed Attendance Record to accounting for
processing. Payments are made electronically whenever possible.

43|Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

d. Board members will be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred for attendance at
conferences and training sessions subject to the limitations of the expense policies of

HPEPH.

e. Board members will be provided a copy of the travel expense policies prior to
attendance at conferences and training sessions in order to claim for registration fees,
accommodation, food, parking, etc. Itemized receipts are required.

f. Expenses incurred with respect to accompanying spouses at conference events are
solely the responsibility of the Board member.

44| Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Strategic Plan

PURPOSE:

To ensure Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH) maintains a strategic planning
process in order to establish a shared vision for the organization and the identification of
strategic priorities.

POLICY:
1. The Board of Health (Board) shall undertake a comprehensive and collaborative strategic
planning process every three to five years.

2. The strategic plan will include input from key stakeholders, community partners, clients, and
staff and will be designed to express the vision, mission, values and strategic directions of
the Board.

PROCEDURE:
1. The Board will develop a strategic planning process every three to five years with the
assistance of external expertise and facilitation as required.

2. The Medical Officer of Health will work with the Board to ensure the process results in a plan
that includes a compelling vision, mission, goals and strategic directions and is consistent
with the requirements of the Ontario Public Health Standards for strategic planning.

3. The Strategic Plan will be reviewed semi-annually by the Executive and Management
Teams, and annually by the Board, to evaluate progress and maintain accountability.

45|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Land Acknowledgement

PURPOSE:
To outline the use of the Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH) land acknowledgement
at Board of Health meetings and events.

POLICY:
1. The Board of Health (Board) shall open all publicly facing Board Meetings, Committee

Meetings, Strategic Planning Processes and community events sponsored by the Board
with the approved Board of Health land acknowledgement.

Hastings Prince Edward Public Health is situated and provides services on the
traditional territory of the Anishinaabe, Huron-Wendat and Haudenosaunee
people.

The land that we preside on today lies on unceded Indigenous territory. Our
catchment area is adjacent to the Tyendinaga Mohawk Territory to our east, and
the Kijicho Manito Madaouskarini Algonquin First Nation to our north. We
recognize that when settlers came to this land they created a legacy of inequities
that are ongoing. We are committed to reducing these inequities, and through our
work strive to improve health equity.

We recognize the importance of the land and environment in establishing and
sustaining optimal health, and we vow to respect this land as we undertake our
work.

Our organization pledges to build relationships with Indigenous friends and
neighbours and recognizes the rich contributions they have provided and
continue to provide to this region.

This acknowledgement is a first step in our ongoing commitment to reconciliation.

2. An abbreviated land acknowledgement can be used for non-public facing events as deemed

appropriate for Board gatherings including closed meetings, press conferences, recruitment
processes, etc. Such decision will be at the discretion of the Chairperson residing over the
meeting.

Hastings Prince Edward Public Health is situated and provides services on the
traditional territory of the Anishinaabe, Huron-Wendat and Haudenosaunee
people.

PROCEDURE:

1.

The Board will read the land acknowledgement at meetings and events as outlined in the
policy statement.

The Board orientation will include orientation to the background, purpose and utilization of
the land acknowledgement and how it relates to the work of HPEPH.

The Board agenda package will include the abbreviated land acknowledgement.

The land acknowledgement policy will be reviewed as part of the review of the Board
governance package.

46| Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Calculation of Municipal Levy

PURPOSE:

The financial requirements of obligated municipalities are set out in Section 72 of the Health
Protection and Promotion Act (HPPA) and Ontario Reqgulation 489/97 (amended to O. Reg
142/05). The purpose of this policy is to specify how Hastings Prince Edward Public Health
(HPEPH) allocates the municipal component of the expenses of the Board of Health (Board)
among obligated municipalities.

POLICY:

1. The municipal component of the expenses of the Board shall be allocated to obligated
municipalities using the population figures provided in the Statistics Canada Census
completed every five years.

2. Updated population figures released in the Census will become effective the January
following the release of the population figures.

PROCEDURE:
1. Population figures will be changed as required every five years for the allocation of the
municipal component of the HPEPH budget.

47| Page


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/970489
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r05142
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r05142

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Advocacy

PURPOSE:

To provide a process for the Board of Health (Board) to influence public health policy change.
Policy advocacy is the process of influencing which policies should be developed and acted
upon for implementation and evaluation.

POLICY:

Members of the Board and Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH) staff work together
to identify and act upon policy advocacy issues. The Medical Officer of Health (MOH) shall
review and approve any policy advocacy work prior to engaging the Board and shall work with
the Governance Committee of the Board to identify policy advocacy options and plans.

PROCEDURE:
1. Advocacy initiatives from HPEPH staff:

1.1. Staff must seek approval through their manager before bringing forward any advocacy
initiatives to the MOH. The Program Manager will ensure the topic aligns with HPEPH
priorities.

1.2. Staff will prepare a briefing note on the topic, including recommended actions and
identified risks. The Program Manager/Director will provide the briefing note to the MOH
for consideration to present to the Board.

1.3. Recommended actions will be finalized and formally put forward to the BOH from the
Office of the MOH.

1.4. The MOH and Chair of the BOH shall, in consultation with the Chair of the Governance
Committee decide if staff should present at a Governance Committee meeting or a
Board of Health meeting.

1.5. Staff will present at the appropriate meeting and recommendations for advocacy
initiatives will be voted upon by members.

2. Advocacy initiatives from the Board:

2.1. Board members, in consultation with the BOH Chair and the Chair of Governance, shall
bring forward new issues for possible advocacy at a Governance Committee meeting.

2.2. The Governance Committee, in consultation with the Medical Officer of Health and
Chair of the BOH, will decide whether to carry the issue forward to the Board of Health
based on community and organizational priorities.

2.3. Issues brought to Governance Committee should include a request for advocacy
recommendations. There should be a clear ask of HPEPH staff (e.g. “We would like a
staff report on ____,” or “What can be done to address the ____ health issue in our
region?”).

2.4.HPEPH staff will prepare a briefing note with policy advocacy options, and present back
to either the Governance Committee or Board of Health at a later meeting as decided
by the Governance Committee in consultation with the Medical Officer of Health
and Chair of the BOH.

48| Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

2.5. On occasion, the Board may identify a policy advocacy issue resulting from a
presentation and discussion at a BOH meeting. In this situation, a motion should be
made to request a staff report and review at a Governance Meeting. If the advocacy
work needs to be addressed immediately, the MOH will work with the Board Chair to
evaluate options and make an appropriate action plan.

49|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

Deputation Requests to the Board of Health

PURPOSE:

1.

2.

To provide a clear and consistent process to receive and respond to requests from the public
who want to address the Hastings Prince Edward Board of Health (Board).

Supports accountability and transparency between the Board and the public.

POLICY:

1.

The Board of Health will provide access to open meetings for members of the public to
observe, or to present issues of public health mandate as noted in the Ministry of Health’'s
Ontario Public Health Standards, by way of a formal deputation.

. All deputations will be reviewed and approved for addition to a Board meeting agenda at the

discretion of the Board Chair and Vice Chair in collaboration with the Medical Officer of
Health.

Deputations will only be granted to residents of Hastings and Prince Edward Counties and on
issues of interest to the Board.

Individuals who do not wish to appear in person may submit a written submission for
inclusion in the public Board agenda (see Procedure below).

A deputation to the Board can be made by an individual either on his/her own behalf or as a
representative of an organization or community group (delegation) on an approved public
health matter (see #2 above).

Up to two speakers can participate in one deputation, limited to a total of not more than 10
minutes. There will be no more than two deputations per Board meeting.

. Approved deputations will be scheduled at the next possible Board meeting providing it can

be added to the agenda without any timing issues or as requested.

Delegations may only appear once on the same matter within a one-year period, unless a
recommendation pertaining to the same matter is included on the agenda within a one-year
period and only to provide additional or new information.

Deputations will not be permitted at Board Committee meetings as these are not decision-
making entities and do not consist of all members of the Board.

PROCEDURE:

1.

Submit a completed Board of Health Deputation Request form found on the Hastings Prince
Edward Public Health website at https://www.hpepublichealth.ca/board-of-health/. All fields
must be completed with as much information and detail as possible on the subject matter. If
you do not have access to the internet/website you can phone Public Health at 613-966-5500,
ext. 231 and we will complete a request for you.

. A letter can be submitted, either via Canada Post or by email at info@hpeph.ca noting in the

Subject Line: Board of Health Deputation Request. The request should provide the following

information:

a. Requestor’'s name, address, telephone number and email address. The Board will not
accept anonymous requests or communications.

b. Full names of speakers and/or presenters and/or a list of individuals who will be
attending the meeting.

50|Page


https://www.hpepublichealth.ca/board-of-health/
mailto:info@hpeph.ca

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

c. Date you wish to present your deputation to the Board (dates of Board meetings can be
found on our website at https://www.hpepublichealth.ca/board-of-health/).

d. A detailed summary of the subject matter and/or a copy of any materials that will be
presented, the outcome that is sought or if for information purposes only and what action
is requested by the Board.

i. Comments that are submitted anonymously or include defamatory language will
not be accepted or form part of the official meeting record.
ii. Correspondence must be addressed to the Board of Health.
iii. Emails/correspondence sent to individual Board members or Public Health staff that
are copied to the Board, MOH or Executive Assistant via cc will not be considered.

e. An overview of you and/or your group.

f. Your signature.

g. If mailing your request, mail to: Hastings Prince Edward Public Health, c/o Board of
Health, 179 North Park Street, Belleville, ON K8P 4P1.

3. You will be notified if your request is approved/not approved, and if applicable, confirm the
date of your deputation. You may be contacted to provide additional information. A date will
not be set for the deputation until all information has been received by the Board, as outlined
above. A reason will be given if your request is not approved.

4. Deputation requests must be received at least 14 days before the date of the meeting at
which you wish to speak. Please note, your request, including your contact information will be
included in the agenda package for the specified meeting date and therefore will be posted to
our website.

5. Should you wish to show a PowerPoint presentation, it must be received along with your
written/electronic request form so it can be reviewed for acceptable content. If it is approved
to be presented, you will be asked to send it electronically at a later specified date.

6. Should you wish to record or videotape the proceedings of a Board meeting, you will need to
follow the instructions as set out in this Procedures section.

7. All material presented and discussed at the Board meeting will become public information.

8. If your deputation includes a group of people, you will be required to designate not more than
two spokespersons. As noted above, the Board will allow no more that two people to address
the Board during the deputation.

9. If you or anyone in your group changes the delegation topic to something that was not
previously approved is not in keeping with the decorum of the meeting, acts contrary to any
of the rules noted below, or in contravention of the Ontario Human Rights Code, you will be
asked by the Chair to cease and come to order. If you and/or anyone in your delegation do
not cease or come to order you will be asked by the Board Chair to leave the meeting
immediately.

a. No behaviour is permitted that interrupts the conduct of a meeting.

b. No one may use disrespectful language, gestures or offensive words.

c. Signs and T-shirts with offensive language or slogans are not permitted.

d. Taking photos and/or making recordings of any kind are not permitted unless prior
permission has been given.

For further information see General Expectations for Deputations and for Observers on the
HPEPH website.

51|Page


https://www.hpepublichealth.ca/board-of-health/

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

TERMS OF REFERENCE - GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

PURPOSE:
The purpose of the Governance Committee (Committee) is to assist the Board of Health
(Board) in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities and to gain reasonable assurance as to the
effectiveness of corporate governance and Board and Committee effectiveness.

The Committee ensures accountability of Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH)
in accordance with the Public Health Accountability Framework outlined in the Ontario
Public Health Standards: Requirements for Programs, Services, and Accountability
(OPHS).

RESPONSIBILITIES:
The Governance Committee will follow the governance expectations in the OPHS and the
Public Health Funding & Accountability Agreement.

Specific duties and responsibilities will include the following:

+ Review the Board policies, by-laws and Committee terms of reference every two years to
ensure appropriate structures and procedures are in place for effective functioning of the
Board.

+ Ensure Board policies and by-laws are adhered to and revised as required tomeet changing
expectations or requirements.

+ Monitor the affairs of HPEPH to gain reasonable assurance of compliance with all
governance-related statutory requirements, by-laws, and policies. This would include but is
not limited to the OPHS, the Public Health Funding and Accountability Agreement and other
key funding contracts.

+ Ensure that a risk management program is in place and reviewed on a regular basis.
+ Ensure regular performance appraisals are conducted for the Medical Officerof Health.

+ Review and provide input on relevant legislation, reports, position papers, key program
changes or other developments regarding agency governance.

MEMBERSHIP:
+ The Committee is a standing committee of the Board of Health.

+ Committee members are selected during the first Board meeting of the calendar year.

+ Membership consists of up to five Board members; one from each of theobligated
municipalities and one provincial appointee.

+ Each member of the Committee designates an alternate from their municipality or
provincial appointees and is responsible to notify and arrange for their alternate to attend a
scheduled meeting, should they be unable to attend.

+ The Medical Officer of Health and the Director of Corporate Services are non-voting
members and serve as resource persons for the Committee. Other Management Team
members may be invited to attend meetings as resource persons based on agenda
items.

52|Page


https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

+ Changes to the membership of the Committee may be made at the discretion of the
Board in order to accommodate changes in board membership.

+ Any Board member is welcome to attend a Governance Committee meeting as an
observing, non-voting member.

+ At no time should the total membership of the Committee be more than a quorum of the
total Board membership.

CHAIRPERSON, RECORD KEEPING & COMMUNICATIONS:

+ One member of the Committee will be elected as the Chairperson at the first Committee
meeting held at the beginning of the year. For consistency, Chairpersons are encouraged
to serve a minimum period of two years.

+ Meeting materials will be provided to the Committee in advance of each meeting.

+ Minutes will be recorded by the Executive Assistant to the Medical Officer of Health or
designate.

AUTHORITY AND DECISION-MAKING:

¢+ The Chair of the Committee has overall responsibility to conduct the proceedings of the
Committee, encourage discussion of members and present summary reports to the
Board.

¢+ A quorum of the Committee is required for recommendations to the Board.

+ Recommendations made by the Committee will be presented by the Chair of the
Committee for approval by the Board, as required.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS:
+ The Governance Committee meets twice a year, or as required.

+ An annual schedule of meetings will be established and distributed to all Committee
members.

53|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

TERMS OF REFERENCE - FINANCE COMMITTEE

PURPOSE:

The purpose of the Finance Committee (Committee) is to assist the Board of Health (Board) in
fulfilling its financial oversight responsibilities by reviewing financial reports, investments and
financial instruments as well as the financial aspects of human resources oversight and
corporate facilities.

The Committee ensures accountability of Hastings Prince Edward Public Health (HPEPH)
in accordance with the Public Health Accountability Framework outlined in the Ontario
Public Health Standards: Requirements for Programs, Services, and Accountability
(OPHS).

RESPONSIBILITIES:

The Finance Committee will comply with the financial requirements of the Health Protection and
Promotion Act (HPPA), the Ontario Public Health Standards (OPHS), the Public Health Funding
& Accountability Agreement and all other applicable legislation and regulations.

Specific duties and responsibilities will include the following:

¢+ Review and recommend the annual budget to the Board;

+ Review quarterly year-to-date results of HPEPH, assess financial performance against the
approved budget and make recommendations to the Board as required;

+ Review financial updates and year end projections for variances, resource allocation plans
and decisions, and make recommendations thereon.

+ Gain reasonable assurance that the accounting practices, policies, internal financial controls
and reports and forecasts are reasonable, comprehensive and managed in an efficient and
effective manner.

+ Review the draft audited financial statements with external auditors and make
recommendations to the Board as required.

+ Monitor the accumulation and utilization of operating and capital reserve funds on an annual
basis in conjunction with the auditors.

+ Review the year end financial settlements and reports as required.

+ Ensure that financial risks identified through the risk management program are mitigated to
the best of the Board's ability.

+ Review budget funding assumptions and forecasting of municipal contributions.

+ Review HPEPH's insurance program including the scope and limitation of coverage on a bi-
annual basis, or as required.

+ Review and recommend a bargaining position and mandate to the Board.

MEMBERSHIP:
+ The Committee is a standing committee of the Board of Health.

+ Committee members are selected during the first Board meeting of the calendar year.

+ Membership consists of up to five Board members; one from each of theobligated
municipalities and one provincial appointee.

+ Each member of the Committee designates an alternate from their municipality or
provincial appointees and is responsible to notify and arrange for their alternate to attend a
scheduled meeting, should they be unable to attend.

54|Page


https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07#BK74
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90h07#BK74
https://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/oph_standards/docs/protocols_guidelines/Ontario_Public_Health_Standards_2021.pdf

BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

+ The Medical Officer of Health and the Director of Corporate Services are non-voting
members and serve as resource persons for the Committee. Other Management Team
members may be invited to attend meetings as resource persons based on agenda
items.

+ Changes to the membership of the Committee may be made at the discretion of the
Board in order to accommodate changes in Board membership.

+ Any Board member is welcome to attend a Finance Committee meeting as an
observing, non-voting member.

+ At no time should the total membership of the Committee be more than a quorum of the
total Board membership.

CHAIRPERSON, RECORD KEEPING & COMMUNICATIONS:

+ One member of the Committee will be elected as the Chairperson at the first Committee
meeting held at the beginning of the year. For consistency, Chairpersons are encouraged
to serve a minimum period of two years.

+ Meeting materials will be provided to the Committee in advance of each meeting.
+ Minutes will be recorded by the Executive Assistant to the Medical Officer of Health or
designate.

AUTHORITY AND DECISION-MAKING:

¢+ The Chair of the Committee has overall responsibility to conduct the proceedings of the
Committee, encourage discussion of members and present summary reports to the
Board.

¢+ A quorum of the Committee is required for recommendations to the Board.

+ Recommendations made by the Committee will be presented by the Chair of the
Committee for approval by the Board, as required.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS:

¢+ The Finance Committee meets quarterly, or as required.

+ An annual schedule of meetings will be established and distributed to all Committee
members.

55|Page



BOARD OF HEALTH GOVERNANCE PACKAGE 05/15/2024

This page intentionally left blank.

56|Page



	Wednesday, May 22, 2024
	8.1-Revised-Governance Package-for-May2024.pdf
	Introduction
	Overview
	Structure
	Meeting Structure
	Strategic Plan
	Expectations of Board Members
	Important links
	Challenges and Opportunities

	By-Laws
	By-Law No. 2024-01 Annual By-Law to authorize the borrowing of up to $1,000,000
	By-Law No. 2024-02 A by-law to govern the banking and financial activities of the Board of Health, and the appointment of auditor
	1. Definitions
	2. Delegation of Authority
	3. Borrowing Authority
	4. Agreement with Chartered Bank or Trust Company
	5. Signing Authority
	6. Appointment of an Auditor
	7. Duties of an Auditor
	8. Rights of an Auditor
	9. Conflict with other Statute
	10. Severability
	11. Previous By-laws Rescinded
	12. By-law into effect

	By-Law No. 2024-03 A by-law to govern the management and financing of the Board of Health’s physical properties.
	1. Definitions
	2. Board to Hold Title
	3. Sale of Land
	4, Property Committee
	5. Capital Funding Plan
	6. Property Management Responsibility
	7. Capital Development Project Responsibility
	8. Statutory Requirements
	9. Conflict with other Statutes
	10. Severability
	11. Previous By-laws Rescinded
	12. By-law into effect

	By-Law 2024-04 A by-law to provide rules governing the proceedings of the Hastings & Prince Edward Counties Health Unit Board of Health
	Table of Contents
	1. Definitions
	2. General
	3. Meetings of the Board
	3.1 Regular Meetings
	3.2 Special Meetings
	3.3 Open Meetings
	3.4 Closed Sessions

	4. Officers
	4.1 Election of Officers
	4.2 Duties of the Chair
	4.3 Vice Chair

	5. Order of Business
	6. Opening Procedure and Quorum
	7. Addressing the Board and Conduct of Visitors
	8. Conduct of Members
	9. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
	10. Questions of Privilege and Points of Order
	11. Rules of Debate
	12. Voting
	13. Communications
	14. Closed Session
	14.1 Order of Business
	14.2 Opening Procedure for Closed Sessions
	14.3 Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest at Closed Sessions
	14.4 Procedures for Closed Sessions
	14.5 Closed Session Agendas and Minutes
	14.6 Closed Session Confidentiality
	14.7 Attendance at Closed Session

	15. By-Laws
	16. Notice
	17. Duties of the Secretary
	18. Appointment, Organization and Conduct of Committees
	19. Corporate Seal
	20. Execution of Documents
	21. Interpretation
	22. By-Laws Rescinded


	BOARD POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
	Accountability and Transparency
	Appointment of External Advisors
	Board Representation at External Functions
	Board of Health Confidentiality
	Board of Health Statement of Confidentiality

	Board of Health Self-Evaluation Process
	Conflict of Interest
	Delegation of Medical Officer of Health Duties
	Medical Officer of Health: Remuneration
	Medical Officer of Health: Recruitment and Contractual Arrangements
	Orientation and Education of the Board of Health
	Performance Review of the Medical Officer of Health
	Remuneration & Reimbursement of Expenses for the Board of Health
	Strategic Plan
	Land Acknowledgement
	Calculation of Municipal Levy
	Advocacy
	Deputation Requests to the Board of Health

	TERMS OF REFERENCE - GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
	TERMS OF REFERENCE - FINANCE COMMITTEE




